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CHAIR WHITE: . . .(gavel). . .Good morning. This Budget and Finance Committee will come to
order. We will shortly begin our review of the Public Works Department with Operating
Budget as well as Capital Improvement Budget, which is quite extensive, so we should be
here most of the day and possibly into the evening today.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(Laughter)...
CHAIR WHITE: Was there some facial expression from the Director of Public Works?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Look at how red he is.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, well I didn't mean to shock him this early in the morning. Anyway,
Members, I'd like to start off by introducing the Members that have joined us this morning.
Our Vice-Chair of Committee, Riki Hokama, is excused as is Bob Carroll. And joining us at
this time is Stacy Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CR1 VELLO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. Elle Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha and good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Aloha. Don Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aloha and good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. Don Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. And Mike Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Aloha and good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Aloha. And Chair Gladys Baisa will be joining us shortly and so with that we will
open public testimony. I don't see anybody in the Chambers. Is it no testimony just yet?
Okay, we'll go to the District Offices. We'll start in.. . and we'll go to the District Offices
beginning in Hana. Dawn, do you have any testifiers this morning?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono in Hana and I have no one waiting to
testify.
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CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much, Dawn. And we'll go to Denise on Lanai. Denise, any
testifiers?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai and there is no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. We're looking forward to seeing you tomorrow night.
MS. FERNANDEZ: Yes, me as well.
CHAIR WHITE: Alright. And we'll go to Molokai and check in with Ella. Any testifiers there?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there is no one here
waiting to testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, ladies. There is no one here either so we'll cut you loose. Thank you
very much. And I'd like to recognize Gladys Baisa has arrived. Good morning, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah, arriving is a big deal these days. Good morning.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. So without objection, Members, Chair will close public testimony
for the day.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
ITEM BF-1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC 14-31)
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

CHAIR WHITE: Thank you and we'll move right into the presentation of the Public Works
Department operating budget. Welcome, Director David Goode and Deputy Rowena
Dagdag, and we can hear there's a little something in your voice this morning. Hopefully
you're...
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: . . .(inaudible)...
CHAIR WHITE: That's good. Alright, whichever one of you would like to start please free to go
ahead.
MR. GOODE: I'll get started, Mr. Chair. Good morning, members of the Committee. David
Goode here, Director of the Department of Public Works and looking forward to spending
the day here with you. What page we starting on? This one?
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CHAIR WHITE: Page 589.
MR. GOODE: Five-eight-nine, okay. Good. That's where I'm at as well. I think what we'll try to
do here today is as we go through the various programs within Public Works, we do have a
number of programs and divisions, I'll be giving an overview and Rowena will be assisting
by kind of describing some of the significant changes from FY '14 to FY '15 and we'll both
be available for questions. We'll do our best to answer them today. Overall, for the overall
Department, you know, we've had the benefit in Ms. Cochran's Committee, Infrastructure
and Environmental Management Committee, of giving overviews of the Department and our
activities and we appreciate that. It does really help when it comes to Councils. I think most
of the Members are familiar with our Department and various activities but as, again, as a
general background we have a small administration office of six folks, the two of us included
in that. We do have three operating divisions starting with our Engineering Division, which
designs and constructs new highways, existing, reconstruct existing highways, drainage
structures, and bridges, also maintains all our records for land that we own for our roadways
and drainage projects. DSA, oh, let's go to Highways. Highways Division maintains all that
infrastructure that Engineering builds and also that gets dedicated to us via subdivision
processes so they maintain our roadways and drainage structures and provide other activities,
which we'll get into as we go through the Budget. And finally DSA, Development Services
Administration, handles our construction-related permitting processes, primarily the Building
Code, Plumbing and Electrical Code, grading, driveways, and subdivisions. And so those
three divisions comprise the entire Department. Then we have about 260 employees all
together. I can tell you I'm personally very, very proud of the hard work that our folks do on
a daily basis. Their attention to detail, their commitment to the public and the Department,
and their overall responsiveness is really truly outstanding and I just wanted to take this
moment to recognize that. So, Mr. Chair, I guess as we go through.. . I'm not sure how you
want to do this, page by page or...
CHAIR WHITE: I'll let you choose and the Members will.. .I'd like to go through the Department's
Summary and then open it for questions. And then we'll move to the next section.
MR. GOODE: Okay. Well, starting on page 589, we do lay out some of the, At a Glance, some of
the significant numbers and statistics, which I'll be happy to go into any further detail if you
wish. On page 590, the Department's summary, it's just our simplified org chart. And I
think one thing to note here is that you see the Public Works Commission is noted now. That
recently passed through this body appointing those members. That commission is now
officially up and running. It'll have its first meeting on the 25th of this month. So we really
look forward to that. Next page, on 591, it gives a summary of our Budget Expenditures via
Highway Fund, General Fund, and Revolving Funds and you can see that the Highway Fund
is the significant portion of our budget representing 70 percent of the total expenditures. On
Page 592, it is again an overall summary and we'll get into the specific divisions as we move
forward through this. It gives a good idea of where we are as a Department but you can see
that in our proposed expenditures are on the order of thirty-six and a half million dollars and
the proposed change this year versus last year overall Department wise of about a half
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million dollars. On personnel, we are requesting a change of five positions and we'll be
discussing this in detail as we move forward. Rowena, you wanna go on Page 593?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Page 593 starts off with a list of our strategies for the Department and
how we intend to utilize our funds and these are some of our priorities. Being able to
develop, recruit, and maintain a capable and motivated workforce, strengthen our
partnerships with various parts of the community, be able to maintain and enhance our roads,
increase education and public participation through a number of our programs, and also one
of the important things that we're looking forward to in 2015 is providing quality customer
service in all three programs that we have. It goes on to Page 594 with a description of our
operations and David had indicated earlier the operations of the three divisions within our
department. And then finally on Page 595, we listed three different external factors that
affect our ability to, or are factors that present challenges in our day-to-day operations, one of
which is the increase in cost for maintenance activities and different types of regulations that
we are made aware of. Our aging infrastructure is also quite a challenge. And also
population growth and increased service requests. And so that concludes our department
summary.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, any questions on the initial portion of the presentation?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And I was, you know, very curious, you know,
on, and we'll go into the more specific as far as the increase in personnel and the budget
when I get into that area but I wanted to go with you providing quality customer service. I
thought that was an interesting dynamic. Can you elaborate just a little bit more on that?
Because I don't think I've seen that from you folks in that respect so I'm kind of curious.
How does that pan out? What is quality service to the consumer? Beyond potholes, what
else?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Sure, Councilmember Victorino and Chair. We oftentimes do get
requests and get contacted by the public about the way we, how we provide customer service
in all of our different programs whether it's our Highways Division being able to patch a
pothole or maintenance of our shoulder areas. It could also be our interaction through our
Engineering Division with our residents and also in our DSA, Development Services
Administration, when we have applicants come in for permits or have questions and we want
to be able to provide good quality customer service and be able to respond to the needs of,
the diverse needs of our community and be able to provide services in a quality manner, be
able to provide in a timely manner as well. So we're looking into seeing how we promote
customer service within our Department.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I think that's very admirable, Mr. Chair. I think that's
something that's been long overdue. Maybe other departments could take that lead also, no
offense. I have one more burning question and I don't know if it falls here or someplace else
but I'm going to ask it now. Why when we have, and I understand emergencies happen,
water, different, and they have to dig up the road and all that. But when they patch it they
don't do it to your standards. They patch it. Whether it depresses later, rises later, I, is, I
guess the question I have for you is wouldn't it be better after they're done that you guys or
somebody who knows what they're doing go back and get it done instead of having
somebody who's.. .are we.. .maybe in another division, you know, Water, or something.
Whatever. I'm using Water because I can relate to Wakea Avenue, got through just paving
and then they had a big main break and there went the road. And now every time you drive
along, at least until last week, you hit that big . . .(voices "boom" sound)... and I thought
that was a speed hump at first and then I realized that was the water. So what happens in
these kinds of cases and is there anybody from your division that follows up when something
has been done on the road and a repair or a patch is done? Mr. Goode?
MR. GOODE: Yes, Mr. Victorino. That's a very good question and it's definitely a concern for us
and the Wakea one kind of highlights it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: I mean, we just finished doing a fantastic project on Wakea. Dug it up completely,
reconstructed it and then unfortunately there's a water main break and so it's nothing we can
control and certainly nothing we can predict.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. GOODE: And, you know, the Water Department, we've been working with them for a couple
of years on this. What we did is we set up kind of a permitting process within our work to
perform or work on County highways permitting process and so they basically have some
kind of, they're basically handling like a leak a day. And a lot of times they're small kine
leaks or just laterals. Occasionally it's a blowout like this one. And they gotta fix it so our
permit, our general permit, if you will, allows hey, go fix it. You know, get it to a decent
standard. Let us know about it so we're going to keep track of it and then you have so many
months to come up with your CIP. Like they do a project, they'll put it out to bid. So it's
much more cost effective for them to put it out, you know, 20 of these at a time rather than
on a onesie-twosie basis. And so we monitor that and then if the patch job is not sufficient
because a lot of times this happens in the night, you know, and the guys, everybody's trying
to get out of there and if it's not good we'll have them come in and fix it up. So that's our
program. It has been working in that we have a much better accounting internally on our side
of where the trenches are and it's not just all Water Department. You know, occasionally it
could be sewer. Occasionally it could be Maui Electric. And so that's been our way of
handling it. Could it be done a little bit better, I think so. We're only a couple years into
this, you can kind of see how it works, what the costs are of fixing it faster versus waiting a
S
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little bit and bundling it. That'd be something we'd have to, I think we should overall look
at. But just for everybody's understanding on Wakea because we had, it's actually, it's an
active Federal Aid Project, that's getting fixed right away.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh. Okay.
MR. GOODE: That's not going to wait six-month deal. It's a significant patch and we want to
make sure we get all our Federal reimbursements so we will make sure that one gets done
and our staffs are working together to get it done -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you -MR. GOODE: --ASAP.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --for that clarification, Mr. Chair and Mr. Goode. And I think
the public constantly asks that question, you know, and I know you guys have been bundling
or at least trying to attempt because I've seen more projects done, you know, where, you
know, Water or Environmental Management goes through and then they come and pave
afterwards, which is great because I used to hate when they just resurfaced and here comes
the next department digging up the road. It's like okay. But thank you very much,
Mr. Goode, we appreciate your efforts. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. I am particularly interested in the
strategies in your number one, which is to retain, develop, and recruit a capable, motivated,
and diverse workforce. What is the situation with the workforce in your Department? Do
you have a lot of vacancies? How's turnover? Help us understand this.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yes, Chair Baisa. That first strategy, as far as our vacancies, I think
we've been, we've had a very healthy amount of vacancies. We've been able to fill the
vacancies that we've had due to turnover, retirement, or any types of resignations. For this
particular strategy, what we are looking at is being able to provide our staff with the right
amount of education, the right amount of training. So if you look into our objectives, some
of our performance measures include monitoring of the number of hours per employee for
training and so we've decided to kind of hone in on that a little bit.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Very good. And you know, I'm big on training and trying to do
career development. The other area that comes up to me in terms of workforce is how does
OT look in your department? Is it an issue?
MR. GOODE: If I may, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Oh, please, go ahead.
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MR. GOODE: I mean, the general question is it an issue, I don't think so. Do we have overtime,
yes. It varies by division. Highways Division has had a lot of overtime this year with the
rains.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I understand.
MR. GOODE: And it's managed to rain every Friday and Saturday starting pau hana time Friday.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
MR. GOODE: So we've, I've been signing a lot of overtime requests and the numbers add up
quickly for those types of activities. So we need to have those types of funds available so we
can be responsive and take care of those problems. Also in Highways Division, probably
retaining employees and training and recruiting is giving our employees the opportunity to be
temporarily assigned to higher positions. So if you're a laborer to a tractor/mower operator if
you've learned how to use that piece of equipment, to an Equipment Operator III, to
Equipment Operator IV. And so when folks are not available or out above you, to have that
opportunity, that's temporary assignment. They get paid a little bit more but it comes out of
the overtime budget, the premium pay. And so they're doing that type of work, they should
be compensated for it. That's where that money comes from. That helps to retain and keep
our employees and have them grow from within the division. Engineering has had overtime
related to some of the projects because we've been doing a lot of projects. And DSA doesn't
have as much overtime. Typically it's more like when we have to go to Lanai for
inspections. There's not very much there but the premium, the category premium pay, which
includes overtime -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Right.
MR. GOODE: --does include those opportunities where we have vacancies and people need to
temporarily assign up, you know, to take on more responsibilities and we want to have that
ability and keep things running but also to have our employees grow.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I think that's a great idea because you'll grow the people that can
move into higher positions and it's really important. I think it has a big piece of morale, you
know. I am of the belief that, you know, everything rests on having employees that are
productive and happy and, you know, have high morale. It makes a big, big, big difference
so this is always a favorite with me. I like to see us encourage and, you know, try and train
and give educational opportunities. Do you feel that you have sufficient funds to provide that
kind of training? Are people allowed to attend conferences and meetings and things that
might help them?
MR. GOODE: I'm sorry, I missed that. Was that a question?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
MR. GOODE: Yes, we do. We do a lot of training and Rowena can tell you more about it.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Well, additional funding for training would always be great but I think
we've been able to maintain that. The, in Highways Division, we do have one person
assigned to train staff on the equipment and as much as possible we take advantage of the
funding for, that we were provided to go to conferences or to also bring outside consultants
to come and train us on different topics that would enhance our productivity and efficiency.
And I believe we have had, we do have some requests in our Engineering Program for
additional training for the use of one type of equipment, so you'll be seeing that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No, that's really good. You know, I've heard the public discuss this
on the radio often when I'm listening to talk shows and they're very impressed with our inhouse paving program. And, you know, that kind of opportunity that comes to people to
learn new skills. So I think that's really good. Thank you.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: And if I may add too, Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Sure.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: We also consult with or work with the State DOT and often times
they'll, we have what's called the LTAP Program, the Local Assistance Training [sic]
Program. And what our involvement in that is there's a Statewide coordinator through the
State Department of Transportation and he works with different representatives from the
various counties on the different training needs. So for example, in May we're coordinating
a workshop on Section 106, that's a Federal program on how to work with native groups and
be able to learn more about the regulatory process. So we try to take advantage of as much,
as many opportunities as possible without having to utilize a lot of our funds. We also have
regular discussions with our counterparts from the different counties. So I think I mentioned
in one of our presentations a couple of months ago that I'm in constant dialogue with the
Deputy Director of Public Works on Kauai. In fact, for Complete Streets, we're trying to get
together a group of representatives from the various counties -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Great.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: --on how do we move forward with that program.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So that's terrific, you know, this opportunity to work with the other
counties is something that I've been trying really hard to do this year is to bring the four
counties together to working together and sharing ideas. It's really, really important. So
thank you. Thank you. And you guys do an outstanding job. I want to say that from my
perspective I get a lot of calls about Public Works issues because yours are so visible. You
know, a big puka in the road or something not done and they always call the Council member
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and when our office calls yours we get a quick response. I want to say thank you very, very
much.
CHAIR WHITE: And just to add to your comment about the premium pay, overtime, I think just by,
this is kind of a guess, but they have, they're less than, they're right around 2 percent of their
salaries and wages and I think that's one of the lowest departments so kudos to you all and I
think we all feel the same way that your Department's been very responsive to the challenges
and very helpful. Members, any other questions on the Department's summary?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Nobody else has anything.
CHAIR WHITE: I have just one question.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: And then I'll...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, I'm sorry. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I guess in regards to the E/P Summary. Just, I guess, we'll
probably go in more detail, you said, Mr. Goode. But real quickly, just the minus in Garage
Services and then the increased Road, Bridge and Drainage Program, the 32 went probably
somewhere else, is that what happened? Oh, is that Mr. Bar?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair and Member Cochran. Good morning, everybody. This is
great. This is the first time I've had to talk all morning. The Garage Services Program, those
were Highway funded position that we moved to General Fund under Special Maintenance
Program. So we just moved those positions to a different funding source and as we get into
those programs we can describe the purposes of that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Yeah, and I want to go to the Maintenance and Enhanced
Functional and Sustainable Roads, Bridges and Drains. I'm curious because, well, I'm not
sure how much on Maui but nationally nearly one-third of all the bridges and spans that cross
over whether it's gulches or canyons and/or rivers are in disrepair and rated below.. .what do
you call that. What is the word I'm trying to find now...
CHAIR WHITE: Below standard.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Below standard, yeah. But there was...
CHAIR WHITE: I can't, no there's another word.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There was another word that they used up at NACo and I
apologize. It just slipped my mind. Those senior moments come a lot more. So how are we
here in Maui County on our bridges? And I guess bridges and drains become the two most
concerning for a lot of people. I've had a number of calls and you guys have been very
gracious about getting out to check on drains that were either overgrown or clogged. Some
of them, you know, and with all the heavy rains we had, like on Alu Road now, almost all
those little culverts are just grass. Weeds are just above the road and going and I guess with
all the rain that's going to happen. But going to bridges and culverts and I guess that, how do
we stand here in Maui County? Are we substantially behind? Are we pretty good? Are we
ahead of the game? Where would you rate us as far as our facilities, you know, our bridges
and drains and culverts?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair and Mr. Victorino, I don't have the numbers in front of me so it's
probably something I'll have to get back to you on but we do have a program, you know, for
our bridges and a lot of our bridges, of course, are on the Hana side.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: Although you will see in our requests we'll be doing some work later on 'lao Valley
Road, Lower Waiehu Road. And so our bridges are certainly attended to. They're analyzed
either, depending on the type of bridge, annually or every other year. So there's a visual
inspection, a structural engineer or one of our engineers goes to look at it so they understand
exactly what condition it is in. We certainly have roads, excuse me, bridges that are in pretty
bad shape and we have others that are in fine shape. So where it is overall versus those
national statistics I'd really have to get back to you guys on kind of an overall view.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'd be interested in that, Mr. Chair. I think that's important to
understand. And again, the other one that has been very concerning is all of these drainage
as well as culverts that run along our roadsides. Now, I know I've asked you in the past and
you said well, that's private. They should be taking care of it. But I keep driving by and I
don't see anything done. My fear factor is when we have some substantial, enormous,
concentrated rainfall what would happen at that point? And I'm to the belief that some of
these drains would back up and either like what happened in Kula, run right over the road
and damage the road. I know that was State, but that's not the point. What I'm concerned is
if we don't clean it out and the owner doesn't clean it out or you don't enforce, or I don't
know who has the enforcement power, I'm afraid one big rain could do a lot of damage
somewhere and I'm just using where I go all the time I see all this overgrowth and, you
know, weeds and everything. I'm thinking if we really have a big rain, the water's not,
somehow not going to go through this culvert and it's going to be diverted somewhere and
I'm afraid it's going to be diverted either on our roads, which will damage the road, and/or
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somebody's property, which they'll come back and say you, County, and then you got a legal
battle and I hate that. But you know, what is your take on all of this and I know the rains
have exacerbated the problem because we've got green and we've got grass as high as, as tall
as I am now and it's great if you got cattle but if you don't what do you do with the grass?
MR. GOODE: That's a big subject that I think in general I could summarize by saying the culverts
that go into our roads are clearly ours to maintain. What happens mauka of that is generally
on private property and sometimes there's acts of nature that are beyond the capabilities of
the culvert, whether it's clean up above or, you know, there's stuff that's going to be coming
down, whether it's trees, rocks, other debris. And we can only, you know, we build the
culverts a certain size standard or if we can't even make the standard for other physical
limitations, you end up with a smaller culvert and it's, it gets overtopped or washed out. So,
you know, in any instance, whether something happens, you know, to try to deconstruct and
say who's to blame varies all over the map so it's difficult to generalize but, you know, our
goal is to keep our culverts free and passable and where those roadside shoulders, you know,
lead into culverts or into drainage systems, those generally are the responsibility of the
neighboring property owners. In fact, the way the ordinance reads, unless it's 15 acres or
more in ag, in which case we cut the grass, it's the responsibility of the property owner and
this year everybody's grass is growing long. I still haven't finished mowing my backyard.
Every time I start it rains. And so in fact this summer we'll probably have Fire Department
concerns for dry grass so it's a blessing to have the rain and it also causes some headaches as
well. So I'll try to answer it real generally but it's a longer discussion really as it relates to,
you know, individual culverts and situations and responsibility.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And let's, and then complete this line of questioning. Who's
responsible to get these owners to do it if we don't and we don't demand it to get done? I
mean, is there, you know, like, for example, Fire gets out there when, you know, lots get
overgrown or become a fire hazard, they get out there and they're able to cite. You either do
it or we do it and we charge you for it. Do we have that same powers within your
Department?
MR. GOODE: Yes, we do. Yes, we do. We have a Code Enforcement Officer for Highways and
lately, the last couple months, it has been his sole job practically is to handle the overgrowth
along roadways. And so we, there have been instances where some of our forces have been
doing some of these areas that we shouldn't have been doing. They're less than 15 acres.
And as we concentrate more on fixing roads and doing pavement preservation, we need to
be, we need to stop doing the work that we probably shouldn't have been doing. And so
we've been notifying a lot of owners. A lot of them Upcountry where we have more rural
roads, less curb, gutter, sidewalks say. And so we notify the owners. We give them so many
days to correct. We send them warning letters, violations, and then we have the ability,
under the ordinance, to do the work ourselves and bill them.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: So it's very similar --12-
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MR. GOODE: So we will do that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --to what the Fire Department has?
MR. GOODE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. GOODE: Yeah. We will do that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So long as I know that's possible, you know, and some
of the areas, I'll give you the names of the roads and where I see I think what a potential
danger is. And then, you know, if it's privately owned, I mean, you know, let's get them to
get it done because I hate waiting, again, I like not to be reactive. I like to be proactive. Stop
something from happening before it happens.
MR. GOODE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Mr. Goode, for that
clarification.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, other questions? Mr. Goode, on Page 589, the At a Glance
section under Engineering Program, you note preserved/improved/renovated/resurfaced
26 lane miles in FY 2013. Is that the mileage done by the internal program or is that
inclusive of our overall CIP allocation for repaving?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, that's a combination. That's both our internal and our contracted work.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And with respect to the next, third one down, closed/completed
construction projects in FY 2013 valued at 17 million. Do you have a rough estimate of what
the annual amount of CIP generated is? Like we're looking at 46 million this year.
MR. GOODE: Yeah. It's a lot more than 17 million. I'm not sure where that number exactly is,
what they were looking at there but I know this year we're doing somewhere upwards of
30 million. Thirty-five I thought. So I'm not sure where this 17 as closed and completed. I
know closed, generally in, the engineers, when they close something that means it's done.
You know, the files going in the filing cabinet. All the work's completed. All the final
paperwork has all been completed so that number would vary from year to year depending on
the timing. Sometimes a project could actually take a long time to close if they're waiting for
some piece of paper so I'd have to find out more about that particular number and how that
relates to the overall amount of CIP we do on an annual basis.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I would appreciate that. 'Cause we, last year, we approved, I believe,
between Highway Fund, Bond, and Grants somewhere in the neighborhood of 45 million and
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so it would just be good for the Committee to understand how much we're getting through as
well as what we're appropriating funds for. Okay, Members, any other questions in the
Department's Summary? If not, we'll move on to the next section, which is the
Administration Program.
MR. GOODE: Okay, so the Administration Program consists of myself and Rowena, our
administrative staff, secretarial staff, administrative officer, clerks and personnel assistant.
This year, we are also requesting an additional position in this Program and that would be for
a financial analyst. And I believe this is something I've mentioned previously. I can't
remember if it was in Ms. Cochran's Committee or.. .it was probably in last year's budget
request as well. We pretty strongly feel that the Department needs a financial analyst type of
a position. We don't have in our entire department, that's 270 employees, 35 million CIP
and probably another $30 million in operating costs, a person that's devoted to looking at
how things can run more efficiently, at least financially, in the Department. We rely on the
divisions and in some cases ourselves to do that type of analysis. We're not necessarily
trained in that. We may not have all the correct information at our fingertips and it just more
often, it seems more often than not we're asking our staff well, what's the cost of this?
What's the cost-benefit ratio of doing something like this? What's our, even our return on
investment. I mean, to look at it from a private sector perspective and a government
expenditure. You know, what is our return. How long does it take to get our money back on
something like this. And, you know, as great a staff as we have, we're not financial folks for
the most part. You know, we have construction backgrounds, engineering backgrounds, and
maintenance backgrounds. So we really feel that this is something that, you know, an
enterprise of our size needs. For us as decision makers, whether it's at the department level
or at the division level, all types of decisions we make on a daily basis and oftentimes those
decisions. . .that decision making should come with a financial component. On our level, we
have to look at okay, what's the political reality? What does the Mayor want? What does
the Council want? What do our employees want? What does the public want? What does
the Code say? But it's hard to throw out oh what's, when we're making certain decisions,
what's the cost? What's the cost-benefit ratio? And we really feel that the overall efficiency
of the Department can be enhanced by having this type of position that can really on a
basically running all types of projects throughout the Department, whether it's for DSA
doing specific projects or them or Highways Division, Engineering Division, or ourselves,
come up with those, that type of information that allows us to make better decisions from a
financial standpoint. So that's in kind of a nutshell what we're looking for. We feel it has
great long-term value. I don't see any reason why this position couldn't pay for itself three
times over at least on annual basis and it's something we look forward to hopefully
implementing. I don't know if Rowena, you wanted to add anything more to that? No? So
that's the biggest change. Other than that, what else do we have in our...
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: We also have $3,200 increase in our Operation costs for transportation.
This is additional funding for our Molokai and Lanai Commission members so we wanna be
able to accommodate their travel.
-14-
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Before we open up for questions, I'd like to point out to the Members that
this, as you will recall, the additional person for a financial analyst was much discussed last
year and I think we all agreed and my recollection is that we ask the Department to go find
somebody somewhere else and that's exactly what they've done so I'm going to, I want to
thank the Department for finding the fiscal, or finding a position, I don't know if it was a
fiscal analyst that came from Environmental Management.
MR. BAZ: Just an EIP.
CHAIR WHITE: Pardon me?
MR. BAZ: A vacant position, vacant E/P.
CHAIR WHITE: Just EIP. Okay. So I want to thank the Department and Mr. Baz for facilitating
that.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, just...
CHAIR WHITE: Kudos where they're deserved.
MR. BAZ: Just a note, Mr. Chair, this is the only position that we were successful in moving.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, that's pretty sad.
MR. BAZ: And there was challenges to that too. No funding came with it so.
CHAIR WHITE: Was it a vacant and unfunded position?
MR. BAZ: No, it was a vacant position but it was paid for with Special Funds.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, okay. Well, that brings up the question if the majority of the work is Highway
work then could this...
MR. BAZ: That would.
CHAIR WHITE: I think it should be funded by Highway Funds.
MR. BAZ: That was Wastewater Funds that you...
CHAIR WHITE: No, no. I know.
MR. BAZ: Oh.
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CHAIR WHITE: But it's a financial analyst that's going to be doing a lot of work on Highways
projects to provide the analytics.
MR. BAZ: I suppose theoretically we are increasing the Administrative Overhead Cost based on the
full cost allocation plan pretty significantly. So they are paying into the General Fund quite a
bit of money. And that would include the Director's office costs.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Okay. Members, questions for the Administration Program?
Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And, yeah, I was going to ask the question in
regards to the new fiscal analyst and how Environmental Management felt about losing a
body or but then just found out the details on that so thank you, Chair. But I'm looking at
the, can we jump over to goals?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Anything in this section is open for discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The Administration Program goals, goal three-one, and develop
annual regulations. . .develop enhanced regulations annually. So you're looking to get at least
four new ordinances or amendments to existing ordinances. So is there like an overarching
number that you're shooting for and then this year you're looking to do four of 'urn?
Or... I'm just, you know, I mean, did you look at all everything, all ordinances and go hey,
we only four is really bothersome to us and we want to work to get these through or. . .1 was
just wondering how did you come up with about four and what you had in mind.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Councilmember Cochran, I think on average we've been looking at
about three to four regulations each year. So if you look at, let's see, success measurement
number two, number of departmental regulations revised or modified annually, in the past,
we were kind of using that as a measure to see how many ordinances we'd been passing each
year and so far we've been able to do two to three per year and so for FY '15 we're kind of
shooting at four. We're looking at our driveway ordinance as one that we intend to come
forward with, perhaps do more work on the bike tours. That's another one. I don't think
we're ready yet with our Building Code. However, that's one that we could possibly would
be working on. Complete Streets is another one. Coming up with ordinances for
Subdivision Code. So we anticipate proposed changes next year. Two to three seem to be
average, but four is kind of like what we're shooting for.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: It could be more, too.
-16-
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I, you know, all for it if it's going to improve our, you
know, overall performance and efficiencies. LED lights? Just, okay. Just checking. But
yeah, overall, thank you for the jobs that you do and we had our budget Upcountry hearing
and we keep getting that same Olinda-Piiholo subject matter keeps coming up about the -CHAIR WHITE: The tree root -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --tree roots in the roads.
CHAIR WHITE: --problem.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So that is a reoccurring one, which hopefully we can get a
solution to. Oh, go ahead.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch? Oh, I'm sorry. Were you done, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And Ms. Cochran brings up an interesting
point. LEDs. She just kind of skipped by that one a little bit but what's the story with
allowing for LEDs? I know we did a test of a bunch of different types and different colors.
Where are we on that? I believe we had some language that we were going to work on and
come up with something to allow for LEDs in both, especially street lights.
MR. GOODE: Mr. Couch, I think, I don't know if we can sit here and talk about those proposed
ordinances in this venue but we do spend about $2 million on street lights so that's part of the
budget and so that was always a number that caught our eye as being something perhaps we
could save some money on. So we embarked on this effort starting with, well other
technologies that we can deploy and so what we're finding is that field is changing rapidly.
So no sooner that you start to look at one thing that might make sense, there's two other ones
out there that might make more sense. And so Kal Kobayashi in the Energy Office really is
spearheading this at this point and did the demo. There's a lot of barriers that need to be
overcome, including the PUC because it's PUC regulated. The question of who is going to
maintain and install them. Right now that's all done with Maui Electric. And there's
certainly opportunities there but what we really want to do is make sure it's done most
efficient way possible. So, like, it is something, it's one of the ordinances I think we would
like to look at so we're probably right after budget be happy to work with Ms. Cochran and
her staff to see where we are on that and what we could possibly do from an ordinance
standpoint but even with the ordinance done, there's still all these other pieces -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
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MR. GOODE: --that needs to help it fall into place.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I just asked because I know there are several private parking
lots that have gone to that and are realizing some pretty good savings so.
MR. GOODE: Right, and their, the ordinance is specific to street lights versus parking?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. GOODE: With parking lots they can do different things. We've even installed them in some of
our parking lots. Paia parking lot, for instance, Wailuku, I think Makawao has the LEDs now
so we've been doing it as well but street lights are created differently under the Code.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Other questions, Members, on the Administration Program?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Yeah, Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Guzman, followed by Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, thank you, Chair. I'm not sure if this is in the right subject
matter but I know that Ms. Dagdag is, sorry Andaya, is, has been working on Complete
Streets and I wanted to know if there were updates on that and what we could do on the
Council to help expedite or support the Complete Streets Program.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Well, we are going to be meeting with, or in fact I, a couple of days ago
I spoke with someone at the Department of Health, State Department of Health and she's
been kind of spearheading the Complete Streets movement in the State and trying to get folks
on board, different counties together to discuss what their programs look like and how we
can all learn from each other so that's kind of the direction that we're headed off to. As far
as Complete Streets, we used savings from our Admin budget to fund for things like speakers
and trainers so we've been able to utilize that. Moving forward, we've developed a
partnership with NPAC, the Nutrition Physical Activity Coalition. So they helped and they
assist us. We're also trying to work with the AARP. Some of them, I think they have a
group that works on policies so in the next couple of months we'll be working with them on
how we can move our policy forward. We kind of stopped at, I mean, to the point where
we're kind of talking about implementation. How do we get this implemented? I think once
we get through that step, then we'll be able to bring something forward to the Council for
discussion but until then we wanted to have that discussion with the other counties, see
what's been working for them, and also get some ideas from the AARP as to what are the
best practices that are coming from different jurisdiction throughout the nation, so.
-18-
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you. Thank you, Chair. In following up, I believe
Ms. Cochran as well as Mr. Couch and myself attended an informational presentation, which
you conducted, and I think you do have this, at least the majority of the Council in support of
Complete Streets so my question was whether anything in the budget could help expedite that
process or if you needed a line item or something like that to help with that supporting of the
Complete Streets. That's where my line of questioning was coming from. So let us know if
there's something that we need to line item or something like that, okay?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: We, actually we did discuss that but we also wanted to be able to use
whatever we currently have, take advantage of different types of training opportunities that
come our way and also develop partnerships. So that's kind of what we're looking at. I
think that we feel confident that we can do things in house so as much as possible we'll do
that.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Very good. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And where my question would be along the lines
of the shields. You know, I've noticed that many areas, especially the new areas have the
shields. Some of the older areas is lacking. How far are we along? And you know I'm
talking about the shield guards that keep the light focused down and not reflecting into the
sky not only for bird and other issues but also even, you know, as far as the astronomy on top
of Haleakala. As we, if we don't start to protect that eventually one day Haleakala can
become like LA, you know. People just build right up and observatories become or are
having a very difficult time because of the light at night. So, I mean, so, but the shields was
really designed to focus so if you go with LED or whatever, to focus the light on the street
itself, the sidewalk, whatever it might be. So where are we with that? Is most of Maui
County covered with the shields or... I mean, 'cause like I say in the old neighborhoods I
noticed they're not done or not as much and the newer neighborhoods I see it's pretty much
always done.
MR. GOODE: I think I can answer that one, Mr. Victorino. The last I remember seeing we're
maybe 70 percent accomplished.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh. Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: The ordinance, the Outdoor Lighting Ordinance when it passed actually had some
mandates in it. We had to get 50 percent done by five years or something like that and all of
it within 10 or 15.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: So we're on track with all that. We did put the program in a bit of a hiatus because
of this potential change to other lights. So it didn't really make sense for us to go spend
those funds. Maui Electric, we pay Maui Electric to do it. If it looked like we're, we're
gonna be changing out a lot of fixtures. In fact, those are the fixtures we might change out
first, be the ones that we haven't retrofitted. So, I mean it is a good idea, I mean have a
discussion about LEDs and really not just LEDs but any other type of efficient lighting and
where we are with the overall program. That's my recollection of where we are.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Okay. Thank you, and thank you, Mr. Chair. It was just one
of those questions that were burning.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, we're going to take a very short recess. We're not going to have a full
morning break since we started at 10:00 and we'll be wrapping up around 12:00 or
thereabouts but so just a two-minute recess. . . .(gavel)...
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:56 a.m.
11:02 a.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . .(gavel)... The Budget and Finance Committee will reconvene. And we will
continue with the review of Public Works and moving to the Engineering Program.
Mr. Goode.
MR. GOODE: Okay, well Engineering Program is pretty much a fiat budget. We talked about what
they do. We had, for the most part this last fiscal year, we're at full employment within the
Engineering Division. We've recently had one person transferred to the State Department of
Transportation so overall they've been using all their A Budget, which is the most, the
highest portion of their budget, their personnel budget. And I'd mentioned previously, I
think in Committee, you know, one of their big challenges moving forward is the volume of
projects. And we get up to, you know, when we get to a certain point here where we can't,
you know, we can't take on too much and expect the same quality. So while we're always
looking for efficiencies, you know, at some point something's going to have to give. And
we're not asking for it this year but I'm just mentioning because you may hear in the future
years about additional positions. But very successful in getting Federal funds, which we'll
see on the CIP side. That is the number one focus within the division as far as prioritization
of work is making sure those Federal projects meet their deadlines. One of the looming
deadlines the last few years include everything up into May timeframes so right now is a
critical time frame for the Division to get out that type of work and, you know, kudos to Cary
Yamashita and all the various section heads and the entire staff for getting that work out. So
that's the general overview and maybe, Rowena, you can give a highlight of some of the
changes from last year?
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MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: We've had a number of equipment requests from the Engineering
Division, one of which includes additional funding for safety and warning devices on our
vehicles. A lot of times our vehicles they go to places that, you know, require some of these
safety measures. We have our Survey Crew that's out in various locations so we just want to
be able to provide them with those kinds of devices. We also have a request for AutoCAD
licensing and training. In here we have about 31,000 for additional funding. This
actually. . . and the reason why we ask for this is because within the past seven years, there
hasn't been that much training on AutoCAD for our staff and that's an important software
tool for our engineers, especially since we're doing a lot of design work now. And at times,
some of our engineers when we work, when they work with consultants, will have to ask the
consultants to format the AutoCAD drawings in a more earlier or a downgraded version just
so that we can view them. So having that ability to train our staff and have them get up to
speed with the software is important. There's another request in here for about 6,750 to
purchase Intersection Analysis Software to analyze intersection operations and that also
includes having the ability to analyze roundabouts. So as we move forward, we want to be
able to have our staff be able to make that kind of analysis. Currently we contract that out to
consultants to do but we want to be able to do that in-house. So that software will give us the
opportunity to make that kind of analysis. We also have in here requests for computer
monitors so that our staff can view plans electronically and I believe we also have in here a
request for funding for a desk. A lot of times we get hand-me-downs that don't usually work
ergonomically for our staff so having that desk would be quite a benefit to at least one of our
engineers.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I noticed your computer monitors are at
$1,500 each. Are these specialized monitors for the big drawings?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yes, they are. And I believe it also involves any kind of software
upgrades needed to accommodate those monitors.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, because I know you can get a pretty good-sized TV that is
also a monitor for that size but these are more higher resolution? Is that what that is?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And you mentioned...
CHAIR WHITE: A higher resolution than HD?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. HD isn't that high a resolution for computer graphics. So
for these big plans to look at, you know, HD is only 1080 this way and you can get 1600 or
more this way so. I was looking at on your goals, could we, we can go back and forth
between goals --21-
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CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --and expenses. Okay. Goal 3, Number 1, it says number of traffic
improvements made annually at intersections. Of the five that you estimate, how many of
them might have a chance at being a roundabout?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Couch, so I guess the question was might have a chance? Well, all five I guess
with that definition. Next question.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Have a strong chance?
MR. GOODE: Okay.. .let's see, which one is this down here? Yeah, well, I think I've mentioned
this before but I'll be happy to mention it again. The, we always want to look at a
roundabout as a solution, right, to a particular intersection and we found a really good one in
Kihei and we implemented it and I think that's been very successful.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MR. GOODE: And we're constantly looking for another one and sometimes it looks like it might
work and sometimes, you know, it doesn't. One thing we're always looking for is balance of
traffic, you know, from all four directions as much as possible rather than being heavy in one
direction.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. GOODE: And site limitations, topography, acquisition potentially of right-of-way. I'm not
sure yet where our next one might be. I mean, off the top of my head I'd say Kahului has the
best opportunities, you know, because of topography and right-of-way. I see Mr. Guzman's
beaming on that. But there have, of course there's been two other ones that have been,
maybe three, that are out there that are in private subdivisions. So there's one in Launiupoko
on your way up, there's one in Kulamalu, and I think there's one actually in Kihei in that
subdivision by Welakahao. So there's a few out there so it doesn't always have to be a
County one but yes, we certainly understand that roundabouts have a lot of value. I think
they've been well accepted by the community. I think everyone on island has pretty much
gone through the one Kihei at this point, not just the Kihei residents and have navigated it
very well and it's been very successful.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Members, other questions? Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. Just going back on the Intersection Analysis
System, which sounds fabulous, on the, how much do we usually spend for consultants?
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MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: That, we'll need to get back to you on that.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, okay.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay, thank you. And then I guess I have one additional
question or if you can answer, I have the flashing, I put in a request for flashing light on Hina
Avenue fronting the Hale Mahaolu Street, I mean residential area. I was wondering if, what
are we doing in terms of crosswalks and things like that?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Councilmember Guzman, yeah, typically when we get a request like
that we try to accommodate it with the existing current CIP budget within one of our line
items. I'm not aware of that one. Is that Hale Mahaolu?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah. Oh, yeah.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Okay. There was a request for a street light and what Hale Mahaolu
needs to do, and we've gotten in touch with Roy Katsuda, so he is having his, one of his staff
work on the application and getting it turned in. So that, I believe, is in progress. As far as
the flashing signal or crosswalk, we're not aware of that right now so I guess that's
something that we'll need to check in with staff.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran, did you have your hand up?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, sure. So in regards to sidewalks, you're looking to install, I
guess LF is lane feet, a thousand? So we did 1,500, over 1,500 last year? Is that right?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And then, and so is there, where in particular? Do you kind of
know off the top of your head sort of district-wise or where these would be or is just sort of
sporadically wherever here and there?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: This would fill in gaps that we have in some of our reconstruction
projects. So moving forward, I believe there's a number that are coming up in Kahului and
in Wailuku. We have some projects there and we'll discuss that in our CIP. But in FY '13,
we had a number of sidewalk projects on Lono Avenue that was part of our reconstruction
project there. We also had Shaw Street and portions of South Kihei Road. There were a
couple of feet, I mean a number of feet of sidewalk that was installed. If you look at FY '14
estimate, I know the number drops to 500 and now we gotta take into account this is a lane
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feet that's constructed. We do use the funding that we receive for design. So in some years
you'll see a spike in construction and then the following year might be a spike in design and
then kind of alternates that way so if you see that huge drop, part of that is because we're
focusing on design as well.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair and Member Cochran, the Quarterly Report for Fiscal Year 2014, Second
Quarter, Year-To-Date Linear Lane Feet, I guess, is 1,320. So they're going to be doing
quite a bit.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And I just, Chair, from last night's hearing in regards to,
I guess, a sidewalk that just sort of ends, like King Kekaulike or something or other or where
was it? I was trying to.. .or was it in that Pukalani in regards to the bus stop proposal? I
guess they wanted to see some type of continuation of existing sidewalk and sort of, you
know, carry through lane feet or whatever, however you want to figure that one. But just
trying to remember, you know, comments.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa may be able to add -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Yeah, she probably knows exactly what I'm trying to
get at.
CHAIR WHITE: --perspective to that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I think Mr. Goode is very familiar with this. What we would like to
see, the Upcountry people would like to see, is they want a sidewalk all the way down on Old
Haleakala Highway because they feel that it's very unsafe and it is unsafe. You know, the
testifier was talking last night about, you know, walking along that lower part when it's
raining and, you know, there's a river of road running along the side of the road where the
pedestrian is walking and she was saying how dangerous it is. I don't know if that would
change with a sidewalk. We're going to have to figure out how to get the water out of there
because no matter if you put a sidewalk, the water's gonna run down on it. It's not going to
change that but it is a dangerous situation and I know that Mr. Goode is very familiar with it
and we've been biting away at it trying to get pieces of it done but of course the residents
want to see the whole thing done so I'm glad to see the thousand feet and thank you,
Ms. Cochran, for bringing it up.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Thank you, Chair Baisa and Chair White. Yeah, I just
wanted to bring it up since they're here and we're talking about sidewalks. And then, if I
may, on Goal 3-1, the all-way stops. So that's like the four way? Is that four-way stops?
All-way, four-way? And a young lady mentioned Kokomo area. Chair, you probably know
the exact area she was, the intersection she was describing, too, for a four-way there last
night.
CHAIR WHITE: I believe it was down right in Haiku.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: There's a two, two stop signs.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I get very confused in that area so I don't even like to go there.
CHAIR WHITE: I think it's where Haiku Road and Kokomo come together.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So if there's a way, but you'd have to like reconstruct probably
the entire intersection to make it more of a cross versus a Y or...
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair and Ms. Cochran, I think, yeah. If they're talking about that Haiku Road
Kokomo Road intersection, I think it's a three-way although there's kind of like a driveway
on the other side but it's like, yeah. It's just a T-intersection with a driveway on the other
side and one side is allowed to go through. Yeah, over the years we've converted a lot of
those to all-way stops so that would be one to look at. I don't think we have an active
request although we can certainly start one. We have a request right now in Hana at the
intersection of Uakea and the road that comes down from the subdivision and then the other
side goes down to Hana Bay. That's a four-way intersection, four way but only three way
stop and right now all the traffic is coming through there because the State's doing a project
on the highway. So it's creating some headaches so your colleague Mr. Carroll sent us a
request and we've been working actually with Chair White's Staff, himself and his staff on
where, and understanding better where we can just basically go do it. Right? So if it feels
like the dynamics were there, and it's really just signage and striping most of the time, you
know, we can implement it and monitor it and then come back for an ordinance change. We
actually have one in Maui Meadows we just did. Converted it from a two-way to a four-way
based on some concerns. So it seems like it's a trend. Where we have those that are two or
three and they could be four-way as being safer so it looks like we have the authority to do it
but we're going to analyze it first and then do it and we can come back to the Council and
implement.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Well, very good. Just follow. . . I'm, yeah, more than
willing to have these come through the Committee and pushed out so very good. Thank you.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Any other questions? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. Thank you for being here. Referencing
quote "Goal #2" as far as the objective, to rehabilitate and maintain County road and bridge
infrastructure on a regular basis to maximize lifespan of such infrastructure. How long
should the new pavement last as you do that work and at what point would the Department
slurry seal to extend the lifespan before another reconstruction begins?
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MR. GOODE: Good questions, Ms. Crivello, and this actually to me kind of goes back to our
Financial Analyst position really helping us to understand all the cost-benefit ratios but in
general, starting from scratch, when we have a new road and it has a proper base course, and
depending on the type of road. If it's a collector road, it handles more traffic and trucks, it
would generally be built a little stronger and still not maybe last as long as a residential road
that has very little truck traffic. But in general we can easily get 20, 25, 30 years out of a
road. Of course many of our roads are much older than that but at some point, somewhere
around 10, 12 years, depending on the type of road, a slurry seal makes sense because now
we're adding about a 3/8 inch layer over the wears, over the top of the road, which is, does a
good, great job of keeping the water off a wear surface. And where we've seen primarily on
State Highways where they've done it now for a few years, those actually wear off. He goes,
oh, look the road's falling apart. Well actually it's the wear surface that's worn out. It's
actually done its job and it's time to re-apply it. So by, and the cost per square foot is so
much less than letting it deteriorate and then putting on another two inches. So you kind of
look at this curve. It's almost like a saw-tooth curve. It goes down, then we make it better.
And then it goes down, and then we make it better. Or we just let it go, the old, you know,
FRAM oil filter. Pay me now or pay me later. You don't do nothing and all of a sudden
you've got to spend a lot of money. So we have the capability, you know, to look at slurry
seal to do the reconstruction projects, which were mainly CIPs, some in-house paving and
then seal coat, which is yet another product primarily for residential roads that really just puts
a very thin layer, which not only does it look a lot better but again it helps keep the water out.
You know, we seal the cracks in the road first. And that alone can add another five or seven
years and that's even less expensive than slurry. So our goal is we basically categorize every
single road in Maui County, the types of treatments that'll be needed and when, and then it
just depends on how much money we have and how much we can do in-house versus
outside. And then the question is how do we get the stuff to Molokai, right? So that's the
next challenge for us and we'd like to start bringing the seal coat out to Molokai and Lanai in
the next year.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
MR. GOODE: And, oh, she got more.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, okay.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: If! could add to the.. .as for Goal, Objective #2, conduct assessment of
pavement conditions. We have a performance measure there that matches up to -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I see.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: --what Dave had just talked about. What we're going to be doing in
FY '15, or what we want to do in FY '15 is monitor the road condition index so that number
75, if you remember from high school, elementary school days, 75 percent is kind of like a
"c" and 100 percent is like an "a". So 75 would be more of your seal coating type of
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applications and as you go higher the level of application becomes just, you know, very
minimal and anything below a 75 would require probably like a slurry or a small paving or
reconstruction. So we utilize a software program, the iWork program to monitor the
condition of the roads. We get the roads assessed every five years and through that
assessment we hire consultants from an outside agency to, just to assess the condition of the
roads. So it's a third-party agency that does this. It's nothing that we have any influence
over. So they provide recommendations. So we're constantly monitoring the condition of
the roads and we're just hoping that we can be able to keep that 75 or better.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, and my question is falling along Ms. Crivello's
questioning was. How much, what percentage have we used the seal on? Not the slurry, the
new seal. Have we used it on some of the roads and has that been applied yet? Or are you
just still in that planning stage?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, Mr. Victorino, actually we just finished our first big project.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. GOODE: We did some trial and training projects in Waiehu and our Lahaina crew mobilized
and did Kaanapali Hillside.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I see.
MR. GOODE: They're next going to the Paunau Subdivision area off Lahainaluna Road.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: That will be our next area. It does require a lot of coordination because we're, now
we're in the neighborhoods, right. And so now we've got driveways, we've got people
coming and going on a daily basis. We'll have times where you can't, you shouldn't be
driving over it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: And so Kaanapali Hillside was a good test case for us for a couple of reasons. One,
the roads were not in that great a shape. It probably could have even used a slurry seal but
we knew that we did a lot of crack sealing in there. It was ready to go for seal coat. And
they also have a very strong HOA. So the HOA was really helpful in getting the word out so
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we could plan the work and they could help notify through their e-mail chain, you know,
when we were coming and after start and stopping a couple of days, it really got to be a good
process.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: And I personally went out there and looked at it last week. They did a really nice job
and aesthetically it looks a lot better and functionally, you know, it's going to add years to
the life of the road. So as we move through the districts, that, those, we've been ordering
more tanks, more trailers.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: And a quick story. We were, as we were doing the work, one of the fellows in the
neighborhood came up to our guys and said, oh, I'm glad you guys are doing this because I
used to do this kind of work and I have a couple of tips you might want to consider. And our
crews went for it and we found out a whole way to do it much more efficiently and less, we
saved some time, and we saved some sore elbows. Physically a lot better. So, I mean, that
was one of those kind of like partnerships that just walks up to you and so our guys learned a
lot and so we're going to be deploying a lot. But if you happen to be in that area, take a
look-see and you can get an idea of what we can accomplish.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Very good, and, you know, the other reason for my
questioning was a few years ago, you guys did complete in Wailuku, Wailuku Heights along
Alu. So I said we're ready if you want to bring the seal. We're ready. And, you know, so I
just wanted to mention that because we were one of the first neighborhoods they did the
sealing of the roadways and if you drive there anytime you can see all the seals all over. And
it really helps improve the usage of the road or the longevity of the asphalt because you don't
have that constant breakup every time it rains and up there it rains an awful lot. So, yeah, I
see the value and, you know, so I would like to offer that. Let us know.
MR. GOODE: If I could add to that. Thanks for that thought.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, see. I sometimes come out with good thoughts.
MR. GOODE: But one reason Lahaina was doing that technique is because the other, both Central
and Upcountry, were doing repaving. So we had the repaving machines being operated here
so we sent the seal coat apparatus out to Lahaina. So again it comes down to, okay, what are
we using? Where do we have forces available? And as we'll talk more about in our
pavement preservation program, you know, we basically had in all these cases, we gotta stop
doing the other work, you know, and jump on this work. So, and then use our funds before
the end of the fiscal year. So those are some of the operational challenges that we work
through.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I make that offer to you, Mr. Goode. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: What generosity, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Hey, hey.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And another place you can take a look at, I
don't know if it's a State road, I believe, however, of how that slurry seal coating wears off
like it's supposed to is North Kihei Road but I believe that's State owned.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's State...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. So it's about that time to have that done so if you can tell
your compatriots over there at the State that that's getting crazy. But I was going to ask
about the ISTEA funds. I notice it went from 18 million to 10 million. Is that because
there's less funds available or we just don't have enough products, projects read to go to take
advantage of those funds?
CHAIR WHITE: What is the page reference?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm sorry, page 604.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, that's good, we actually had the same question in preparing for this meeting
today and two things. One is, and we can make these changes here and work with staff but
it's not called ISTEA anymore. It's called MAP-21.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, it's MAP-21. Yeah.
MR. GOODE: Right. And so but it's basically the same Federal tax. Our gas tax dollars go to
Washington and we ask for them back and we have been averaging around 15 million. And
so you'll notice here in FY '14 adopted was about eighteen-and-a-half. We actually had
some projects ready to go early and so we shifted some funds from I guess '15, proposed '15
into '14. So '14 has a little bit of a spike and '15 will be less. I, that's what's proposed. I
mean, we're going to do everything we can to take '16 projects into '15 so that but that's the
reason why. There's some project shifting. Also, the Federal Fiscal Year is on October 1, so
there's a little mismatch with our Federal Fiscal Year so.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. GOODE: That's the explanation.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And any word on the reauthorization, and I haven't seen anything
come through, of MAP-21 funds? Because it's supposed to lapse at the end of this year, this
fiscal year.
MR. GOODE: Right. Yeah, September 30th• It's a two-year program and they reauthorize that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. GOODE: We haven't heard anything. We haven't certainly made any contingency plans that it
won't be. It seems to me they gotta because these are gas taxes. I mean, for the most part
gas tax monies, right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You would think.
MR. GOODE: So we already have paid.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We had to have a huge rally.. .well, huge, a pretty big rally of a
bunch of elected officials went to just urge our legislators to pass it and I don't know what
else we can do. We've been pushing pretty hard for it. If you guys can help out too, that
would be good.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, the problem is the fund is running, is going to run out of money and there's
a great hesitancy to increase the gas tax. And if they don't increase the gas tax, the money's
going to go away and I think that was a good part of the realization that the Federal DOT
came to the conclusion they need to streamline the process so they can get projects done at a
lower cost so we get more bang for our buck. And I think that's a challenge that we face in
all arenas of government expenditure. We've figured out ways to make sure that by crossing
all the t's and dotting all the i's, that we're ending up taking a lot of time to get projects done.
I can't remember what the average that they were using for Federal projects but in some
cases it was, I recall them saying it was 10 years. And if you look at the bypass and other
major projects around the island, I would say that 10 years is probably a streamlined version.
Because some of these projects take a very long time to get going. Other projects on
Engineering? I mean any more questions on Engineering? Sony about that. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And just staying in line with the grant awards on
page 604, the last one, the USDA NRCS grant jumps up to 7 million proposed. So is that
funding like a given or you're hoping, you're wanting? 'Cause, like you know, Federal and
everything. Not much control there but if you can maybe expound on that figure.
MR. GOODE: Sure, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
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MR. GOODE: Be happy to because you're right. We are hoping. These are funds that to US
Department of Ag had been available for the early stages of the Lahaina Watershed Project,
which we are constructing. We have a phase right now, which is basically utilizing the last
of the Federal funds we had available. After this we have design that's ready to go. We have
land acquisition in process to keep going as we move forward with the project. But right
now we have lobbied our Congressional delegation, made them very aware of this and of
course, you know, as we all know, our Congressional delegation is relatively new, right. So
mostly new faces so we gotta get them up to speed on what's trying to be accomplished here
but with the absence of earmarks at the Federal level, we're not confident of this funding but
we're certainly making every effort too and, you know, we want to budget for it because it
helps to keep, may keep it alive and shows that we're interested in providing our match and
our side of the project. But yeah, I think it requires all.. .and I'm sure you folks have
probably talked to your, same delegation as well. But we all need to keep working on that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. Yeah. Again, you know, it's needed and
thanks for your efforts too and we do the best we can, explain and justify what we need and
we'll just see how it turns out. But it says for matching yes and it varies? So currently what
is it and does it typically, you know, sway one way or the other? Or how does it, is there like
a historical kind of number there?
MR. GOODE: We'd have to look back at the historical number but primarily they've funded most
of the construction. The design has been in coordination with the Army Corps of Engineers
and NRCS doing the design. We've done a land acquisition. We've done the construction
management and what else have we done. We have ownership and maintenance
responsibilities forever. So that's kind of the typical local match.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Alright, well thank you. Looking...
MR. GOODE: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
MR. GOODE: Mr. Baz reminded me this year we're proposing a million dollars of construction so
it'll kind of up the ante to show that we're serious about the project.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. GOODE: We're looking to pay some of it, pay for that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Alright. We'll keep an eye out for that. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Other questions, Members, on the Engineering Program? Just a question, the auto
parts expense, the expansion number for 16,000, it states to install safety and warning
devices onto vehicles. That suests that we don't have them now. Is that correct?
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MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yes, we don't have them now.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so these are for the engineers' vehicles when they're going out to evaluate
situations and they're parking on the side of the road.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: That's correct.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. And the other thing was under the AutoCAD I realize 31,000 is
for additional licenses, I'm assuming that's for the upgraded licenses or licenses on the
upgraded...
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: And...
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: And then there's an additional, I believe it's an additional 10,000 just
for training.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: So it comes out to $2,000 per staff person.
CHAIR WHITE: Per license?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. And then on the details page 17-12, could you explain on
line 6138 R & M - Services/Contracts, what's included in those? This looks like it.. .well,
the previous year it was only $745. And that may be that this was moved from some other
area but then 183,000 authorized for 2014 and requested again this year. I was just
wondering if that's... sometimes when we see those, those are one-time requests. Maybe
Mr. Bar can look up what's been spent thus far this year.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, I'll give, give you an update on that. But this is part of the Special Maintenance,
used to be in the Special Maintenance Program and then last year we moved that to the
Engineering Division, all the salaries and operations costs because the Engineering Division
is the one that oversees the maintenance workers of this building.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, but this would, well, these are service contracts and that doesn't indicate
that that would be the cost of the folks taking care of this building.
MR. BAZ: Those could include elevator service contracts and different things like that.
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CHAIR WHITE: And.. .okay. So for AC and things of that sort. And then everywhere else we've
seen Budget Director's inflationary adjustments on electricity so we're not.. .do you know
what the prior year was for the electricity charge?
MR. BAZ: Hold on, let me look that up.
CHAIR WHITE: Two thousand thirteen?
.(silence)...
MR. BAZ: To answer your first question regarding the 6138, Repairs and Maintenance Services/Contracts, year-to-date expenditures 92,748, current encumbrance 49,602.. .oh,
excuse me. Yeah. So that leaves $40,926 balance or 22.4 percent of the $183,000 budget
available.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So you're on track there.
MR. BAZ: For...
CHAIR WHITE: While you're looking up the electricity we can...
MR. BAZ: The electricity for the current year is expended to date $660,058 with $171,218 balance
available, 20 percent. So I can double check why that doesn't have an inflationary amount in
there.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, well that one appears that we're gonna expend more than that so maybe we
should turn the lights down in here.
MR. BAZ: Turn the AC a little bit warmer I think might help.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well, amen.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No kidding.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Amen.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we do just fine after hours when it's off. Okay, Members, any further
questions on Engineering.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Cochran.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And, so just to get looking at construction
inspector, is that basically the people that go out on the field and go to construction sites? Is
that what that title is inferring?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, for the Engineering Division, those are our inspectors that go out on our, for
our CIPs. So when we're constructing a road or a bridge, they're there to ensure that there's
compliance with the plans and specs.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: For our personal jobs?
MR. GOODE: For our CIPs.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not private?
MR. GOODE: Not private jobs.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay.
MR. GOODE: Not within the Engineering Division.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Where are those?
MR. GOODE: That's DSA.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, any others? Director, we'll send you a request for a breakdown of the
Service Contracts under Building Services and County Buildings R & M. Staff, if you could
make note of that. Okay, moving on to the next program, unless there are further questions
on Engineering?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ..(Inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Nope.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . (Inaudible)...
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Move on to I believe it's the Maintenance Program next. Yeah, Special
Maintenance Program, Director?
MR. GOODE: Okay. Thank you, Chair. As we just discussed, you know, Special Maintenance
Program underwent some changes last year in that we transferred all the various accounts
related to this campus to the Engineering Division, which has, you know, the oversight for all
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of it. So it made sense that not only they had the oversight but they had to deal with the
expenses. And so that left the Special Maintenance Program with really just taking care of
some other facilities, Hana and Molokai Civic Centers. And this year we're proposing
another change to the Special Maintenance Program and that's to take on the Garage Services
function. And I think Sandy will explain some of it and I'll just give a real quick background
in general of what we're trying to accomplish. And I think you've all been briefed on, you
know, the work we've all been doing on the County Vehicle Use Policy and part of looking
at, you know, our vehicle fleet in general is that our expense is related to vehicles to a large
degree but not completely are really just kind of housed within our Highways Division if you
will. So some of the operating divisions as they, you know, fill up their vehicles and get
them maintained, all those costs are on our budget and so there's less likelihood of them, you
know, really scrutinizing their costs because they basically got someplace they take it. We
take care of it and we charge out for it. So we started an effort, and it's an ongoing effort.
It's a lot of work and a lot of numbers to say okay, well, how much does each department,
let's say Housing and Human Concerns.. .not to pick on them. It's, you know, they have
Meals On Wheels and other programs that they use County vehicles. You know, their cost of
their vehicles, whether it's fuel, oil, gas, parts, and labor for maintenance, we'd like to see all
those in Housing and Human Concerns. Right. And then they can come to us for the gas.
We got cheap gas. They can come to us for maintaining their vehicles. But if they're not, if
they have for whatever reason higher costs on an annual basis, they're going to have to
manage it, those costs within their program not within our program. And so it's a big effort
and we've gotten to the point where we know where all the fuel costs are by division and
department. We had a little hiccup because we had to change from one fuel system to
another fuel monitoring system but now we're into understanding what are our. . . like a
mechanic shop. What are our costs per trip? When someone comes in they change the oil
and the filter and next thing you know we're changing wiper blades and we gotta also had to
fix a door that wasn't locking. Almost a job by job by job basis. All our yards are doing
that. So it's an effort now to collect all that data and migrate it towards the various
departments. So it may end up coming out longer than I anticipated but been working real
hard with Sandy folks in Finance to make that happen.
MR. BAZ: So if I might add.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Baz.
MR BAZ: So what happened this year is that we started to develop, you know, the actual data that
they could collect and I gotta give good kudos to the Highways Division. They do monitor
very well, like the parts and costs of those items. We have a breakdown of, you know, all of
the either General or Special Funds that, you know, the parts are charged out to, the fuel is
charged out to. The labor is a little bit more difficult the way that they're processing that
now to be able to determine how much to budget for in each department for labor. So what
we're proposing to do this year is to move the labor costs from being Highway Funded to
being General Funded and that's just, again from kind of my opening statements couple days
ago, it's an item that is more prudently paid for out of General Funds because those funds can
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be paid for throughout the County operations, whereas Highway Funds are restricted
specifically to Highway Fund operations. The Special Funds, Solid Waste, Wastewater,
Highways, and Water Department, and also Police and Fire.. .well, actually very little, no
Fire and very little Police, do get charged out for their actual usages but the other General
Funded departments weren't being charged for that. So what we're proposing this year is,
we had desired to actually put the money into the different departments' budgets as
Mr. Goode described so that they would have direct control over the expenditures that
they're having for vehicle maintenance and operations but we had some challenges in to
being able to budget for that as, and then also the salaries, you know, how do we budget for
salaries in the Highways Division and for salaries that we would be paying for out of the
other departments' budgets without having to double book those salaries? It makes it a little
bit difficult. So for this year, until we can overcome some of those challenges, what I've
asked is that if they can start to keep better track and actually produce invoices, well, yeah.
Basically invoices and to show the departments what they're actually spending on fuel, what
they're actually spending on labor and parts even though we may not be charging back those
labor and parts at this point for the General Funded operations. For Special Funds, we will
continue to be charging as they have been charging and those costs will get reimbursed by
the Special Funds. So I know that was kind of a complicated thing to grasp.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: We've been working on this for a good year or so and we're going to have to work on it
for quite a bit longer so we may have some more changes next fiscal year in the Proposed
Budget and if we can figure out how to actually do those proper cost allocations for the
General Fund funded departments.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, questions? Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. I have some questions but I first want to take this
opportunity to say on behalf of my island, I'm sure everybody would agree that Public Works
on Molokai is very well appreciated and respected. They go beyond the call. In the, our
Parks deliberations there was discussion about transferring.. .1 think this is on 17-15 on the
Details, janitor to Parks and that includes salary and the employee. Does that mean that the
building in itself will be under the jurisdiction of Parks and after completion of the new
baseyard slash, I guess, office, you won't need a janitor?
MR. GOODE: Right. Yeah, this is kind of an interesting one. I think, you know, over the years all
the services provided at Mitchell Pauole, I think in the old days Public Works was kind of
like the overseer and that was the role we had there for a long time but we'll basically be
vacating the building once we get our new facility up and running. So the janitor, and it's a
three-quarter time position, had reported to the district supervisor for many years and
knowing that we're going to be moving out we kind of asked the question internally well
who should that person.. .we still need a janitor. There's still a building there. Still got a lot
of.. .Water's in there, Finance, Parks is running, you know, the balance of the facility so it
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seemed to make sense that the Parks take over the janitor position. Still need the position but
the, you know, it fit better within Parks. Parks has a lot of janitors already. They understand
the position. They understand the needs of the position and so one reason we're changing it
this year, like, even though our facility is not completed is that the incumbent that was in that
position basically moved back here to Maui and is now working in this buildingwhen we had
a vacant position. So the position freed up. It was a good opportunity to, okay, let's make
the switch and let's make the switch now.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
MR GOODE: That's how it came to be.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. If! may?
CHAIR WHITE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And then in the Details with 17-15, 17-19 about the transfer
from Garage Services to the Special Maintenance Program, and maybe that's what you
already explained, Mr. Bar. And I'm. . . why is only the employee from their account being
transferred?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Ms. Crivello. The operations was already being paid for by
General Fund, it was just salaries were being paid for by Highway Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Are you finished, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, sorry. Oh no, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: For now, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Okay, thank you. Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And not to harp again but in regards to the
cemeteries, and I see it's on, you know, on the top of your list of what this program does, and
it looks like we have three veteran cemeteries and seven County. And whereabouts are the
seven? I know it, 'cause I have a few, quite a few in West Maui and, you know, we've been
in dialogue and discussion on how can we keep these maintained and I think last years, I
mentioned, and maybe Mr. Bar can chime in but I see it more fitting with Parks and in a
sense. And if there's, and I see it's General Fund, so it's not Highway Fund at all. So is
there an easy way or is it possible to transfer over with funding and. . .1 don't know if that
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would be a possibility. Perhaps maybe not this go-around but next and start thinking on how
we can do this, you know, transferring out or over to another entity. Because I know you
have, you know, you have your priorities and I do see Public Works more as Highways and
CIPs and I've never thought that you folks would be in charge of cemeteries but yet here you
are and I'm not saying that you put it down on your list of, you know, things to do but there
are some that are quite neglected and I'm looking at, I guess, two E,Ps for cemetery
maintenance. Is that right? Two is what we have and that's two bodies for Countywide?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, currently those are veteran cemetery caretakers so they're devoted to veteran
cemeteries. And you're right as far as, you know, the other seven goes. Yeah, they are
neglected, I think sadly. But this Council did last year appropriate some monies whereas in
prior years we had zero. So we were appropriated zero funds for quite a few years and so as
the policy direction was don't maintain them. Not given any money so don't maintain them.
We were on this discussion the other day. Other counties, the Parks Department does
maintain cemeteries and for the most part, if you're cutting grass and then you have some
irrigation or beautification-type activities those would be Parks' functions. We haven't had
that discussion with Parks so it's premature for us to say they'll do it but, I mean, it does kind
of make sense. And some of our cemeteries, like in Lahaina, are at parks or next to parks
where they already have folks there. So it's something certainly worth looking at, I think,
and so...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. GOODE: Do you want to add anything to that? No? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I mean, and then it jives with your Goal 1, and this I
wanna get a little more elaboration as to why you have Goal 1, Number 1, respond to all
cemetery work order requests within 24 hours. So obviously cemeteries is happen, you
know, it seems to be an issue of some sort and but I'm taking this is in relation to the
veterans cemetery in particular not so much these other seven. But if we can, if I can get
more explanation, thank you.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yes, Councilmember Cochran, that's correct. It's more directed
towards the veteran cemeteries. We do get requests from the families for certain things.
Grass cutting is one. Water delivery is another. But as far as the other types of cemeteries,
the indigent type of cemeteries, we rarely do, on occasion. We do get requests from general
members of the public for maintenance and we do respond as far as being able to do the work
timely or being able to provide it using the limited funding that we have. It will take some
time but, you know, we try our best to respond to any concerns.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you. But I just, Chair, and this goes to your
Kaanapali Beach Hotel for stepping up to the plate for the cemetery as you enter into
Puamana, I believe your folks are maintaining that particular one.
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CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So definitely thank you and I know trying to set a role model
and example for others to follow suit. But in the meantime again, so the moneys, I know it
was a few thousand dollars last year that got appropriated to cemeteries. So that went
specifically to just veterans cemeteries at this point?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: No, it did go to the other County cemeteries. So being able to maintain
the grass and bringing water over those, that's where the monies went to.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay
Department and Chair.

I'll look at the line item and see. Thank you,

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER CR1VELLO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: I think Mr. Victorino first -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --then followed by Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, well along those lines even though they may be adjacent
to some of our parks, my concern right now, Mr. Chair, is the Parks Department is going
through a whole mess of changes and trying to get reestablished and to put something like
this on them at this point in time may not be very applicable and logical. I mean maybe in
the next year or two once they get their, you know, programs together then maybe something
added because in most cases I know the neglect has not been intentional. I know there's a lot
of work you guys put into it and I think some of our cemeteries, our veteran cemeteries have
been worked on and try to upkeep but it's a difficult process, yeah. And of course people's
requests and wants and needs for their loved ones is important also. I go up to Makawao all
the time because my in-laws and lot of family up there and we go around and we pull weeds
and we do little things because that's all part of the respect we have to pay towards our fallen
family members, yeah. So, you know, I would be a little hesitant to work on something like
this this year just because I know Parks is trying to, you know, reorg and trying to get their
whole programs in line so to add something else right now might not be a great idea. And
that's my personal feeling but I want to say that, you know, Public Works has, and in the past
and even today, continues to work very, very hard, you know, in keeping our cemeteries that
we control in good shape. The unfortunate part is there's a lot of private cemeteries sitting
out there that nobody takes care of. Example is the one off of Papa Avenue and that's a real
eyesore. Right over here. And there's a whole, I can go around this community and there's a
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number of cemeteries, which are controlled privately, whether by churches, by individual
groups, whatever, communities that are neglected tremendously and I don't know how to
address that because those are private. And, you know, I've made inquiries. You know, I've
asked different communities and sometimes there's been good response, like the one right
down here off of Vineyard. You know, they're working very diligently now to clean it up
and make it look good because it. . . and again, the rain. The grass grew so fast. You lost the
whole cemetery. You know, so it's a real do if you don't and damned if you do, you know,
and kind of like I understand it so. But thank you, I want to just recognize the fact that
Public Works has, Mr. Chair, in the past and continues to work really hard for our
cemeteries. Are they perfect? No. But I think they do a darn good job. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Question on the page, on the Details with 17 dash,
on Page 17-25. Okay, 916213 is noted County Garages Molokai, and then on Details 17-85
the index code is 976759. What is the difference between those two index codes for your
County Garages on Molokai?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair and Member Crivello, the difference is that one of 'em's, the one 17-85, is
Highway Fund funded operations and the other one is the General Fund funded operations.
COIJNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, okay. Okay. Okay, that explains it. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members, we're going to take our lunch break. We'll be back at 1:30. Oh,
Mr. Baz, do you have...
MR. BAZ: Real quick about the electricity for Special Maintenance -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: --for this facility. I did look it up. There was an anomaly in Fiscal Year '13's
expenditures that brought it down to $606,000 and so a straight budgetary inflationary
schedule would have reduced it by another 165,000. So we didn't do that. We just left it
flat.
CHAIR WHITE: We just thought you might have been asleep at the switch, you missed one. We
should have known better. Okay, Members, we will adjourn.. .not adjourn. We will recess.
We will recess until 1:30. . .(gavel).

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

12:02 p.m.
1:32 p.m.
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CHAIR WHITE: . . .(gavel).. .The Budget and Finance Committee will come back to order and
we'll be proceeding with the review of the Public Works Department and we are still on the
Special Maintenance Program. So, Members, we'll open it up for additional questions or
comments on the Special Maintenance Program.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So just to go back a tad, during break found out that cemeteries
are actually under Public Works jurisdiction but in the Code under Parks. So there's like a
little, just small kind discrepancy there so I'd definitely like to figure out how to merge it
under one or however. So I wasn't sure if you were aware, Director, about that and what the
situation is with that.
MR. GOODE: Maybe you could educate me on which Code but I had looked at the Charter, I
actually have a copy here, and neither of us are mentioned as having cemeteries other than
we both have the generic as may be assigned by the Mayor but there's nothing about
cemeteries in Chapter 5 of the Charter for Public Works and Chapter 6 for Parks. But there's
a Code. I don't know what the Code says. So I'm just curious.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. That's forthcoming.
CHAIR WHITE: But was it in the Parks' section of the Code?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Title 13 Code.
CHAIR WHITE: Do you, have you pulled it up? Mr. Baz is looking it up.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair? But also do understand that monies do come in from the
Defense Department or for the caring -CHAIR WHITE: For the...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --of the cemeteries
CHAIR WHITE: For the veterans cemeteries.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Veterans, yeah.
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
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MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, 13.20 is reference to veterans cemeteries and that is under Title 13,
which is Parks and Recreation.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: But the Director of it, it says Public Works under definitions.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
MR. BAZ: Yes, and then the Director means the Director of the Department of Public Works and
Waste Management for the County of Maui or his designated representative. So even though
it's under Title 13, which is Parks and Recreation, it's referenced to the Director of Public
Works.
CHAIR WHITE: Sounds like a referral to Mr. Guzman's Committee to straighten it out. Okay,
moving right along. Any other questions on the Special Maintenance Program? The Chair
has just one item left on Page 17-25. There's at the top of the page index code 6031 Repairs
and Maintenance Supplies, there's $75,000 of expansion request for funding to purchase
additional, or to purchase aggregate and concrete needed to repair damages caused by the
scouring. Is that, if you could just expand on that a little bit, how this is a need from a
regular year.
MR. GOODE: Thanks, Chair, for, this is probably something we should have touched on earlier.
The 'lao Stream Flood Control Project, as most folks know, is concreted in the upper section
and concrete in the lower section and the middle section is not. And that section gets a lot of
erosion, requires a lot of work. We spend hundreds of man hours in there on an annual basis.
And from time to time it needs more attention than in other years. This past year we had a
number of rain events and also I think we had our Corps of Engineers inspection in the last
month. Yeah. And they have, you know, they continually point to this area 'cause it's so
difficult and as this stream meanders through here we get boulders pushed to one side and it
just generates a lot of work. So from time to time we do need additional resources placed
towards the stream.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so are there prior year expenditures in this area, Mr. Bar?
MR. BAZ: I can look but it doesn't, wouldn't seem so because this wasn't a change in index code,
this is a new item.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Yeah, that's the way it looks.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I do have, there might have been some prior expenditures in the Highway
Fund, maybe in Roads, Bridge and Drainage but that would be aggregated with their
expenditures so maybe the Director can check on that with his Highways Division Chief. I
did want to note that the Special Maintenance Program does have equipment requests in the
Bond-funded equipment.
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CHAIR WHITE: Oh, yeah. Thank you for the reminder.
MR. BAZ: That is Page 732 of the Program Budget and there are two items that they're requesting
for the Special Maintenance Program for the Flood Control projects. One is a D8 dozer with
ripper attachments for the 'lao Flood Control Project in the amount of $950,000 and the
second item is a D7 dozer and I think it's for the Kahoma Stream Project, right? Kahoma
Stream, Kahoma is missing from that right before stream, flood control facility in the amount
of $720,000.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, questions about the two items under the Capital Improvement,
Countywide Equipment Bond?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and I guess my only question is just because, you know,
not, depending on what's the difference between a D8 and a D7 dozer. And I should know
but, you know, I've had so many dozers come in front of us, I guess size would be a part of
it. But anyhow, yeah, is that what is required to maintain these two waterways, if you want
to use that term waterways?
MR. GOODE: Yes, that's exactly right. The D7 is slightly smaller.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: For Kahoma we have a de-silting basin at the top of the project.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. GOODE: And so it's not as, it's a little more difficult to get in and out of. The 137's the right
size piece of gear. We need the D8, you know, in this area I just mentioned where we also
need additional materials and supplies. There's just a lot more to move down there so we
need the bigger piece of gear and these are both replacement pieces of gear. Because of the
wear and tear and being in there so often, we just can't do the job as effectively at the end of
its useful life.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So like the D8 dozer, its entryway is off of 'Ehã Street, that
entryway in there? Is that...
MR. GOODE: That's one of the ways we get in. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Get in there. And then lower down by Foodland, above
Sack-N-Save there's another entry.
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MR. GOODE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Entryway. That's the two entryways for these to get in to do
their work?
MR. GOODE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And this is what the Corps of Engineers would be also
mandating that we continue to clean and maintain those waterways?
MR. GOODE: Yeah. They wouldn't necessarily mandate the type of equipment.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. GOODE: But they have a level of expectation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that's what I'm referring to.
MR. GOODE: That's key.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, the level of expectation.
MR. GOODE: Has to meet that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you very much. At least I'm clear on what this
refers to. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Other questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, Director, I guess these projects having been US Army Corps
at one time and then the maintenance in perpetuity falls upon the County itself so is that kind
of how it works out and -MR. GOODE: Yeah, and...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --funding doesn't really come with it via them anymore?
MR. GOODE: Correct. It's set up like that. They're always, it's always a joint venture but the
Army Corps, for instance, they're, you know, at the beginning and give a lot of the
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construction funds but the maintenance is our responsibility. They come back and inspect it
because, you know, these flood controls also then make areas next to it out of the flood areas
and so for them to either have lowered flood insurance rates or no flood insurance is
dependent on these systems being viable. So that's why they continue to monitor, you know,
how well we're keeping them up and that they're in good working order so that these areas
stay out of flood zones.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, Chair, a follow-up?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And if there's need for any, like renovations or any kind of
rehabilitation or some sort, would they be able to, have you seen them pitch in again to help
assist in funding for work like that?
MR. GOODE: Uh-huh. Yeah, I believe that's the case. I've actually never been involved in let's
say a rehab project but in the case of 'lao, they have an existing project. I believe it's in the
Draft EIS stage and it's been in the draft stage for a long time to look at that middle section I
just referred to. Should they concrete it? Should they figure out a way where you can still
allow water to run through and either percolate in or, you know, have the aquatic life still use
it. So they're still evaluating that. But we would expect them to be paying for that-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay.
MR. GOODE: --improvement if it ever gets through the process.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Well, thank you. Yeah, that was going to be my next
question about that section you mentioned that it's not been channelized and what was gonna
happen with that or why it was left that way so I guess it's in the process of being looked at.
MR. GOODE: And I think that's actually the kind of thing that our Financial Analyst, as a project,
they could take on would be to work closely and understand what exactly have been our costs
moving forward? And what are, are our costs starting to escalate as this section deteriorates
and how can we, you know, what, how does that play into this Draft EIS? How can we help
make this process work?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right, okay. Thank you. Thank you, Director. Thank you,
Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino.

-45 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 3, 2014

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORJNO: You know, Ms. Cochran asked the question and I'm going to
use my memory banks and they're not always that great. But if I recall correctly that whole
center area that wasn't channelized a lot of it was due to that, at that time, the plantation still
being there and not wanting that channelized. And you can go look in the history but I kind
of remember that was part of the problem when lao was, the flood was, the destruction was
always on the upper side or on the lower side where holes were. In the middle was all,
remember, sugar cane. And then as the years went on others occupied that area. It's been ag,
unusable, untenable land and so that was why that area was kind of always left alone. And
part of it was the fauna that grows up, the fish and the '0 opu and all that. That was the other
part that they didn't want to, you know, the native Hawaiians didn't want that changed. So,
but, you know, that was years ago and now things have changed and so now maybe, you
know... and I wanted to ask you this question. With the company that's presently take back,
took back ownership and the cleanup, has that helped as far as the channel itself or are they
just doing their property? Because I know some of the stuff was dumped in the river or the
channel itself. So have they helped clean up in that lower, that middle section where their
property is? Have they done any work in that area?
MR. GOODE: I don't know the status of the, I guess, I know most of the cleanup's done, I think.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Yeah.
MR. GOODE: I haven't had a report yet as to how it reacts, I guess, with the stream area but part of
that side was supposed to be for overflow so when it got up to, flood waters got to a certain
height instead of just staying within the levies and going down actually some of it flowed out
along the Waihe'e side.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: You know, that kind of wetland area. Because there have been so much moving
around of things over there I wasn't sure, I don't think, my understanding was maybe that
area wasn't going to be fully utilized in that type of flood event. So that'd be one thing the
Corps will be looking at it, I think, in their site inspection.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair, for allowing me that
moment.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Goode, we've sent a note to the Director of Finance to provide us with the age
and condition of each of the pieces of equipment that are being requested for replacement.
So just to give you a heads-up if you could put that information together. Any further
questions on the Equipment Bond Purchases? Seeing none, we'll move back to the other part
of the budget and, Director, you can proceed.
MR. GOODE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair. We're on to Development Services Administration General Fund. We also have the Building Permit Revolving Fund, which we'll get to next.
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As I mentioned earlier, Development Services Administration handles a lot of our permitting
activities for construction-related permits. For the most part this is a very flat budget with a
couple of minor changes and some, let's see, no changes to the performance measures, which
we could talk about. But maybe Rowena can talk about any of the pertinent changes. It
looks likes wages mostly, yeah?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: That's correct. Our increases basically come from the Collective
Bargaining agreements and then as far as our Performance Measures, it deals with our
customer service goals and also being able to provide training for our employees.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. I'd like to compliment them on their going from actual 52
to 200 over the next couple of years. I think that's, you know, for training and development
seminars for your employees especially on new codes and other related regulations. I think
that's fabulous and I hope that training continues. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: On page, on the Details, Page 17-27, 2014 we have a position
title Construction Inspector II, position number PW-03 15 and 2015 it's Plumbing Inspector
with position number PW-03 15. Is that just a change in title, position title?
CHAIR WHITE: Which page was the first one on.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: It's on Page 17-27, Development Services Administration
Program. It's like...
CHAIR WHITE: And where was...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: It's the SR-19J.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I seen that one. Where was the other one?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, it's the same line. The 2014 -CHAIR WHITE: Oh, yeah. Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --Fiscal Year it was Construction Inspector II.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And the position title for 2015 is Public, Plumbing Inspector II.
Are we just changing titles or...?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: It might be a typo there, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: And then I just wanted to also note on Page 611, we have, let's see, our
E/P count shows Construction Inspector II in 2014 adopted. It's two positions, 2015 adopted
is two positions. And then when you look at the Budget Details, 2014 we have here one,
two, three. So I think this is a typo here. We have our personnel officer looking into that as
well right now.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions on this section?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Yeah, thank you. And in the last chapter, Director, you
referred me to the inspectors in this section, DSA, for inspectors that go, I guess, out in the
field to inspect. So this, that's the two E/P then? Construction inspectors, is that who they
are?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, the construction inspectors are the ones that handle inspections of grading,
driveway, work in the County right-of-way and we have two that are funded under General
Fund and I believe one is funded under the Building Permit Revolving Fund. Let's see. No.
Well, we have three. There's three total -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And these...
MR. GOODE: --construction inspectors.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But these aren't strictly just in-house projects though, right?
MR. GOODE: No, these are not in-house projects, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: These are clearly not.
MR. GOODE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So we have three construction inspectors to go Countywide?
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MR. GOODE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Cover Countywide, which doesn't seem like a whole lot and a
lot of land to cover. Well, 'cause if we're, you recall, Director, last year in regards to
inspecting and it, I wanted to get more to cover more ground when needed so again it just
seems like, you know, we're still in that predicament with a lot of land to cover and not.. .1
mean you said clearly there was enough inspection but now we have a big issue going on in
West Maui. So, and I'd hope to avoid such situations and prevent that from reoccurring is
kind of, you know, what I'd like to look at. So again, if it's due to lack of, you know, on the
ground inspecting then, you know, if we need more bodies, great. If there needs to be, I
don't know, some sort of reprioritizing or, you know, goal... I don't know. The training, I
think, maybe goes hand in hand with what you want to do with training. I noticed goal one,
number two, you know, investigations for grading and drainage issues, compliance things,
and you want to drop the days that those are, you know, taken into consideration or looked at
or what have you. So just hoping to get better...
MR. GOODE: Yeah. You know, we're definitely sensitive to it and, like you mentioned, we've had
this ongoing project in West Maui, which has consumed a lot of our time not only for the
inspection staff but for the engineering staff as well. And it's kind of the nature of that
business where we have, you know, projects are, have a certain time frame and seeing those
certain months or years where there's nothing that really is too difficult. And then you get
one that's a difficult project and then maybe get two at a time. And so I haven't gotten
feedback yet from the staff that they're, they can't get to all their projects. The nature of that
type of inspection is that they're generally there, like for driveways, they go to see that it's
formed up properly and it meets it and then when it's all done. And so they're pretty quick
inspections. For work to perform in the County right-of-way, you know, they can drive by
and see what's going on at that particular moment, the way things, materials being placed,
traffic control. And it's, they're all meant to be spot checks. We're not meant to be there too
long. But some jobs we have to spend more time at or go more often. So I haven't got the
feedback yet that we're not being able to meet our responsibilities for the lack of personnel.
And it would be worth, I think, looking at how many, you know, total permits we had issued
and how many active we are doing divided by those three as compared to say, you know,
electrical where we issued 3,600 permits with six inspectors, I think it is. See what that
difference in workload is. And finally in the West Maui one, I think, I don't have any
indication that either they're not having enough inspectors or not being there often enough
was somehow directly related to any event that might have happened.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. GOODE: So I think it's something that I think we need to be sensitive to and watch for.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
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MR. GOODE: You know, and if it seems like we're missing out on things and it could be all over,
all types of those permits, then we either gotta reprioritize some assets and make that work
better. But at this point I haven't got that indication that we're not meeting those
responsibilities.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you for using that word reprioritize perhaps and
to look into that 'cause I think that was key, this, that term was key in this particular
construction site, which is one of the largest going on and unfortunately there's been some
negative, I guess, you know, repercussions. But again, I just want to say thanks for the
efforts and we have to deal with what we deal with but just wanted to double check on that if,
you know, it had to be, you needed more E/P then we could look into that. But, you know,
reprioritizing, like you said, I think can work too. But definitely hear out community and if
there's issues to again hopefully jump on it sooner rather than later or, you know, deal with
negative impacts after the fact so.
MR. GOODE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Director. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Further questions on the DSA Administration? Seeing none, we'll move
to the Building Permit section of DSA.
MR. GOODE: I'm sorry, Chair. You said go on to Revolving Fund?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
MR. GOODE: Okay. We discussed this a little bit in your Committee. A couple of weeks ago it
came up. The Building Permit Revolving Fund was established, I believe, in the late '80s. I
think Mr. Hokama was here at that meeting to shed some light on its creation. At the time,
there was a bottleneck of permitting. There was a lot of construction activity, I think,
associated with what they call, what we now call the "Japanese Bubble" and so there're
primarily what we call our Plan Review Fees. When someone submits for a building permit,
there's a rough valuation done at the time of submittal. And the building permit fee say is
$1,000, we charge one-quarter of that, 250, for the review fee. That fee is primarily what
goes into this fund and as a result of having that fund and building up assets in the fund,
DSA, then known as LUCA in the late '80s, hired more staff. So the idea was hire more staff
and get the permits out quicker. So of all the activities that happened down in DSA, we have
like 38 or so positions in General Fund and I think about 14 positions out of the Building
Permit Revolving Fund. And so within that it's primarily used for salaries and related
expenses. We also use the fund to pay for our rental of our offices on Lono and
Kamehameha Avenues. This is where we have all the electrical, plumbing, and building
inspection staffs. We also, from time to time, will purchase vehicles, which is included in
this particular request. We have done some office improvements through this fund as well.
So this fund's revenues vary a lot depending on construction activities. It's dependent on
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applications and the value of those applications. So it can go up. It can go down. It varies a
lot more than say real property tax revenue or gas tax revenue. And I think we found out last
time there's like $3 million in the fund currently. We ran some rough numbers and right now
there's about a million dollars coming into the fund annually and about a million dollars out.
So right now based on our current permit activity it's in and out is about the same although
we have a balance, which, you know, for slow years or for special projects would come into
play.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, questions for the Department? Director, the seven vehicles that
you're purchasing, I'm assuming those are for not just the positions that are listed under the
Revolving Fund but they're for other positions as well?
MR. GOODE: Correct.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. GOODE: Correct.
CHAIR WHITE: I just want to be sure, Mr. Baz, that there's no restriction on purchasing vehicles
for other folks that are not covered by the Revolving Fund.
MR. BAZ: I will double check on that.
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes?
MR. GOODE: If I could just for a moment, I'd like to give a little overview of what we've
accomplished with the vehicles. These are all replacement vehicles that as part of the
vehicle, overall vehicle policy, you know, I'm really taking a hard look at all our vehicle use.
We jumped through some hoops to make this happen and I think they were good hoops to
jump through. The first thing we did was try to identify vehicles within our Department that
could be transferred to DSA. Highways had a couple candidate vehicles but they wouldn't
work for the type of use that was needed at DSA. Engineering Division had a vehicle that
did make some sense and so now we're transferring one vehicle from Engineering Division
to DSA. So that's actually not part of this request but we actually had a need for more than
seven. We also are, we also had an additional vehicle at DSA Offices here that we are going
to be transferring to Lanai. So I don't know how many of you off island have used our Lanai
vehicle. It's kind of used.. .yeah. You might like this vehicle better. That one was in pretty
bad shape. It's hard to keep a vehicle up when it sits at Manele. And then they found
another vehicle within DSA, which will probably be retired within the next year or two. So
overall, we had a need for more vehicles. We ended up attritioning three, I think the total is
three vehicles we attritioned. One we moved, two we're attritioning and seven are
replacements.
-51-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 3, 2014

CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. GOODE: And these vehicles get a lot miles. The construction inspectors, building, plumbing,
electrical. Every day, you know, they're on the road -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. GOODE: --servicing their accounts and so we're looking to get vehicles that are getting, like
Ford Escape type vehicles that can handle the four-wheel conditions we have to deal with
from time to time and get a lot better mileage. So overall I think this is going to be, this is a
winner. You know, it was a good process for us to go through in streamlining our vehicle
count, which at least our mantra has been, we call it what would FedEx do? Okay, well
FedEx would have enough vehicles, just enough, to get out on the road, service their
accounts, handle any breakdowns or what have you and be really efficient with their vehicle
count. So our goal is, we call it what would FedEx do and that's what we're striving for.
And this is a great first step.
CHAIR WHITE: We heard some wonderful numbers from your Department and others from the
Management Department's presentation on the progress on the Vehicle Policy and that's very
commendable. Appreciate that. And certainly whatever purchases we can make out of this
fund and save General Fund monies is certainly appropriate and welcome. And to my earlier
question, I'm assuming that the remainder of the equipment isn't just for the positions that
are covered by the Building Permit Revolving Fund? Would that be correct?
MR. BAZ: While they're checking that, 16.26 B.108.2.1 establishes the plan review fees and fund
and it says there is hereby established and created a fund to be known as the Plan Review
Permit Processing and Involvement, Inspection Revolving Fund. The fees collected pursuant
to this subsection are hereby deemed appropriated upon receipt and may be expended for
salaries, training, contracts, rent payments, fixtures, supplies and equipment that facilitate
plan review and for the payment of overtime for plan checking, permit processing, and
inspections. So it's not specifically...
CHAIR WHITE: No, it doesn't sound like it's limited to the, to this...
MR. BAZ: Yeah. But I also have our Corporation Counsel who's reviewing it as well.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. I don't think that it's a problem but I guess Mr. Couch is
requesting that Corp. Counsel come up here to do the review. Is that correct? Okay, any
other questions on the Revolving Fund? If not, we'll move on to the Highways
Administration Program.
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
MR. GOODE: If I may? We do have the Construction Plan Review Fund, which is a small fund, it
has like one page -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, you're right. I just went -MR. GOODE: --in your binder. Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --right through it.
MR. GOODE: I didn't have a separate tab for that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What page?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sony, what page is this?
CHAIR WHITE: Page 617.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: So this fund is administered through Development Services
Administration and whenever applicants come in for construction plan review, their fees go
towards this fund. We have our performance measures listed on Page 617, and being able to
review 100 percent of all construction plans within 30 days. And that's by Code anyway, so
we just have that one performance measure in there. And this Fund is established through
Chapter 18.24.010 of our Subdivision Code where it says that there is established and created
a fund to be known as the Construction Plan Review Revolving Fund. The fees collected
pursuant to Subsection 18.24.101(d) of this Code are deemed appropriated upon receipt and
are authorized to be expended for the hiring of persons employed on a fee, contract, or
piecework basis or independent contractors to assist in plan checking, permit processing, and
inspections. The fees may also be expended for payment of overtime, for plan checking,
permit processing, and inspections. We currently have about 300,000 in this Construction
Plan Review Funds. We haven't used much of it because we're very limited as to what the
uses are so, but we currently have that fund and we wanted to bring that forward as well.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much. I guess that leads to the question of whether we should be
suspending that fee rather than continuing to build up a balance.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: How much is in it?
CHAIR WHITE: Pardon? It's, she just said there's $300,000 balance in there and the uses are
limited.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: So, Corp. Counsel, I don't know whether we are allowed to, I guess we're allowed
to rescind it for a while.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It would have to be by law. Ordinance.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, let Corp Counsel tell us.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Since you came up here.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yeah, that would be correct. If the fees in the Code if you
wanted to suspend it or rescind it you would need to do it through an amendment to the
Code. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Does the current ordinance disallow us transferring an E/P into that fund?
(silence)...
MR. UEOKA: Mr. Chair, I believe you could do it under 18.24.010(E) just would need to work out
the specifics with the Department and the Budget Office and our office of course.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Ms., Rowena, do you know what the annual collection is on that fee?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Looks like, according to IFAS to date, we have about 1,200 collected in
revenue.
CHAIR WHITE: Does that show previous years' collection or -MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: I...
CHAIR WHITE: --the total?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: No, I don't have the previous years.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Okay, then we'll take a closer look at that.
MR. UEOKA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: And if you'd like to.. .what? Oh.
MR. UEOKA: Oh, sorry. I'm sorry. You can't move an E/P. It's hiring of persons employed on a
fee, contract, or piecework basis or independent contractors but doesn't seem like it's
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intended to be a salary-type. You guys could also, again, if you wanna change it you can
amend the Code.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. And did you have an opinion on the earlier question while you
were downstairs?
MR. UEOKA: Yes. I believe the purchase of equipment to facilitate plan reviews is what that fund
was intended for.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Yeah, I think the question was the intent was broad not limited in any way?
MR. UEOKA: Yes. This, there are some limitations, of course but it is very broadly worded, the
use of the fund language.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, as long as it's within the DSA responsibilities.
MR. UEOKA: In.. .yeah, in fact it's just plan review actually so I don't even know if it's limited to
DSA necessarily. It says as long as it goes towards plan review. I'm not sure how their
group is organized.
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair, I think this is worthy of us, at least at the Department level, taking kind of
a comprehensive look as where we are with this. I mean, given this current revenue source is
pretty manini, but there's a decent balance. I'm trying to look back what was the original
intent of this. The fact is we do collect the fees, like to process permits, but maybe this isn't
the best mechanism for it. Maybe it could be housed somewhere else that makes more sense.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, but I think the current practice is reasonable where you've got a number of
E/Ps in there that's not exhausting, it's not drawing down the balance very rapidly and from
time to time we're using it for equipment purchases, which you can do on an as-needed basis
depending on the size of the fund, so...
MR. GOODE: Well that's on the Building Permit Revolving Fund. Maybe I was talking about the
wrong one.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, okay.
MR. GOODE: But I'm talking about the Construction Fund one.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we were back on the Building...
MR. GOODE: Oh, I'm sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: Building permit.
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MR. GOODE: Yeah. To me, I mean, I don't know, I think it's good for us to take a hard look at all
these. I mean who do we also charge for electrical permits, electrical fees, which goes into
the General Fund to see maybe how everything where it's working and where maybe it could
be working a little bit better for these. . . you know, meet some of the needs that are out there
that are.
CHAIR WHITE: Well maybe that's a referral to Ms. Cochran's Committee -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --for further discussion. Okay, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know, you had the monitors for the,
and the software for the Plan Review guys? Wouldn't that, couldn't that come out of this
fund as opposed to the General Fund? I mean, as long as we're needing to take out of it, why
not go.. .because it's for, to facilitate plan review. I mean the software and those monitors at
least.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, that was the Engineering Division, right? So that was maybe the CIP. They
do some plan review. Lot of our construction plans for roadways or DSA intakes does go to
the Engineering Division so I don't know. I don't feel confident right here right now just to
say yeah and go do it. I think we really need to take a hard look at it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Just a thought. I mean...
MR. GOODE: It's possible.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. Thanks.
CHAIR WHITE: Good thought. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Yeah, I think, and that was when you were talking
about the other department and I was following Mr. Goode and looking into this
Construction Plan Review Revolving Fund. I was liking his direction where he was headed
to take a look at this and how can we better utilize the monies that are here. Although it's not
large it's something. And my question was going to be, but he, you know, you said let's take
a look at how we've been utilizing this or what and that was going to be my question. What
have, how have we used this in the past? On what particular plan reviews or what, you
know, what construction job or.. .1, so that was going to be my question but I take it that
you're not quite sure as of right this second and going to take a look into it.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, that's correct. I really don't know. We'd really have to dive back into it and
spend some time on it. Figure it out.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. But jumping back on Mr. Ueoka's comment, this is
for outside? I mean we hire.. .so that's what I was trying to put together. This is not an
in-house EIP or is it? And it's for outside contracting or outsourcing to look into, you know,
I don't know, the building of the new building next door that may be coming up? So
anyways, I was just trying to figure out how this would be utilized or has been in the past but
I guess we'll be...
CHAIR WHITE: I think the Director can answer that better than Mr. Ueoka.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, well, yeah. So, Chair, then you think we're going to look
into it and I'm more than happy to bring this into my Committee, so, for further discussion.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Okay, moving on to the Highways Administration Program. Director?
MR. GOODE: Okay, on the Highways, our biggest division by dollars and personnel. As I
mentioned earlier, of course, the division maintains our roadways and drainage structures and
primarily does other activities. In the Administration side, our E/P count is basically the
same. They handle... well, the Chief is there, Mr. Hashiro, Assistant Chief, Eric Yamashige.
We have our Automotive Service Coordinator, Mr. Kurisu, Code Enforcement Office as I
mentioned previously and Equipment Operations Instructor and support staff. So essentially
all the activities that happen within the districts are funneled through these folks and they do
a great job coordinating a lot of different things on a daily basis. And as far as big changes,
well there's obviously, there's some big changes here for overhead and increases due to
Collective Bargaining agreements. Anything else here.. .no. Those are mostly the big
changes.
CHAIR WHITE: Maybe you could go through the transfers and moves in personnel accounts?
MR. GOODE: Let's see, on Page 618.. .I'm sorry, Chair, where are you looking?
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry, I was...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Jumping ahead.
CHAIR WHITE: I was under Roads and Bridges.
MR. GOODE: Oh.
CHAIR WHITE: A little too far.
MR. GOODE: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So we'll stay on Administration. Members, questions?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. GOODE: Okay, Road, Bridge and Drainage Maintenance Program.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, I just have a question -CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRWELLO: --with Highways on the Details. Page 17-39. I just, of interest,
I'd like for an explanation. In 2012, the actuals for Telephone Services, 8,000, 2013 six, and
then 2014, 20,000. Is there a reason for that peak at it looks like it's land service, land line
service because we have charges for cellular. Did you change out your phone system of
some sort?
MR. BAZ: Ms. Crivello, the, without looking into it further, the assumption could be made that that
$20,000 has just been the regularly budgeted amount and the actuals were those lower
amounts but I can double check on those.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, other questions, Members? I'm assuming, Mr. Baz, the Interfund Cost
Reclassification increase of 418,000 is the adjustment in the overhead costs?
MR. BAZ: Yes, that's correct.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So that actually frees up or transfers to General Fund -MR. BAZ: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: --that amount of money.
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. From the Highway Fund, right?

CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Any questions on the Activities, Goals, and Measures? Ms. Cochran or
Mr. Couch? Okay, moving on to Road, Bridge and Drainage Program.
MR. GOODE: Okay, so this is where the bulk of the work happens out there, within this Fund and
for our Highways Division and this services the six districts. Significant change for this year,
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which I'll talk about, is a continuation of what we started last year in our Pavement
Preservation Program. Last year, I think we had a request that was maybe started around like
16 personnel I think is what we had transmitted. We ended up getting five positions. I'm
looking at you, Mr. Victorino, because I think maybe you suggested that if I recall correctly
and then we worked with it to see how it might work and we've been trying to make it work.
So what we did was the recruitment process for the five has been difficult. We've got one
position currently being re-recruited. The other four have had some classification issues that
DPS has been working on but like I mentioned earlier, the paving activity that we've done,
the pavement preservation activity that we've done is with existing forces. So what we've
kind of come up with is with the five positions that we got last year, another five positions
this year, and then we're moving, I think is it four. . . eight, eight positions internally. So as
we had the need for, I mean, less work on the roads as we're improving the roads we see the
opportunity to move positions internally into the Pavement Preservation Program. So as
we've gotten more understanding how the program works, how the equipment works, and
with the necessary forces behind it to make it work effectively and safely this is the way the
division has come and we support, have come up with to make this program work. So by
having the flexibility eventually of 18 folks, we can handle all different types of work in all
different districts all year round. This will greatly reduce the amount of work the rest of the
crews have to do at least directly on the roadway. We're also looking at other opportunities
to, you know, get back to our core mission. And so I mentioned earlier, like the grass cutting
is to look at hey, are we supposed to be cutting this grass or not? If we're not supposed to be,
let's start working with the folks to educate them and let them know that we're not supposed
to be doing this so those, you know, that activity, those hours can be spent on the things we
should be doing, including pavement preservation. So it's been, you know, looking back
from a year ago, it's been a good process. It really has given us the opportunity now that we
have the equipment, we have the know-how, we're getting our forces trained, and we're
deploying understanding of what we can and can't do and we'll get better at what we do and
with the right amount of manpower. So this year's request, obviously the Mayor is in full
support of our request. We hope you are too. But again we had five last year, five this year.
We're taking eight internally turning them into this program and we're, you know, trying to
meet our other needs by making sure we do what we're supposed to do and that's what
maybe we shouldn't have been doing where we're going to wean ourselves off of doing.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, and, Mr. Goode, I appreciate the efforts and I think
the internal transfers, internal movement of people going be very important as we go down
because you're just telling us that the five you gave us last year you're having a hard time
just filling those positions by either description, or recruitment.. .there's a challenge. And
that's my other concern. If you had a hard time with that five, we give you five more, how
do you recruit for those? Unless you work out the problem, you're going to be the same way
next year coming to us and saying, well, you know, we got that five and maybe we finally
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got that five settled, now a new five we're still trying to figure it out. I'm not opposed to
what you're doing. You know, I'm rather been very pleased in your Department's handling
of re-pavements and all these other issues. The challenge I have is if you're having a hard
time filling the five right now, what's going to make it that much different for this upcoming
fiscal year? And yeah, you're learning but you still have to reclassify. When is that going to
get done? And do you find qualified candidates or qualified people to fill those positions
once they are reclassified. I guess that's my question, you know, and I know it's a long
question but it really amounts to I don't mind giving you more but if you're not going to end
up getting anybody to fill it, it seems like a waste of time at this time. I mean, if you come
back next year and say hey, we got these five filled and everything's working good, now we
can, now I know how to handle the next five... I don't know. You tell me, Mr. Goode.
MR. GOODE: Well, I'd surely much rather be telling you that we had the five, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. GOODE: And it's been a difficult process. Some of it's the reclassification, some of which,
when that reclassification happens this year, the other ones will basically be done. We'll just,
it'll just slide right in. Others have to do with the timing of well if it's in a new program. If
you hire at the bottom, who's their boss? Or maybe you should hire the boss first? And so
it's kind of the mechanics of Civil Service. Sometimes in a new program it may get pretty
tough. But that said, I think maybe the way, it's something we could look at maybe as we go
through this budget process is do we need to fimd all eight months. We don't fund
12 months typically with new positions. We fund eight months, I think. Is that correct,
Sandy?

MR. GOODE: You know, maybe another number might make sense.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess the other question I have as far as this division is
concerned, how many of, within this division would be looking at retirement or stepping
away? I mean, you never know when someone will step away because they decide they
found something else. Like you said, when DOT, State, or whatever. But within this
division, since this is one of the larger numerically E/Ps, how many do you feel would be
stepping away or retiring? Because then again, you gotta replace, which means probably
new hires. Again, these are questions that in my mind that are very important. I want, you
know, I want to give you what you want but I also know that as these dynamics change, what
happens next? You know, and, you know, the quandary is reclassification, fine, you got that
done. But you get four of them step away or six of them step away, retirement, you know.
And you mentioned that there's a larger number that looking at retirement. I don't know
about this division but you did mention that earlier. So that would be my other question for
you. I don't know if you've had time to look at it. Maybe you can report back to us later if
you're not comfortable in answering it now.
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MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Well, with respect to turnover due to retirement, we can take a look at
that but as Dave was, you know, mentioning some of the challenges in getting the initial staff
hired for the Pavement Preservation crew. You know, I just also wanted to add that the five
positions that are coming in I believe we'll have a little less of a challenge because these are
positions that are already classified. So these are existing positions that, you know, we have
position descriptions for and that, you know, we currently have staff. So for example, the
Traffic Signs and Markings Helper we're requesting for two. That's a position or those, that,
it currently exists. So we wouldn't have a difficult time trying to recruit as well as the
Traffic Signs and Markings Painter I. That's another one that's already classified. Clerk III
is another position that we're requesting for and that position is already classified. The one
challenge may be getting the Paving Supervisor but overall I think we'll have a little bit
easier time trying to go out and working with DPS and recruiting for those five positions as
opposed to what we've been experiencing this year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Alright, I mean you know your Department better than
I do. The other question I had, and the last question is I see Equipment III, Equipment III,
Hana Road, and Equipment IV. All four of those positions are minus, minus, minus. Are
you moving them to somewhere else? Because each one of them is minus and also Laborer
II. You know, of all, you know, you're looking at adding but then I see you subtracting. Is
that basically change, re-description of positions or what is going on with those four
particular areas?
MR. GOODE: Right, those are the ones that we're looking to move to the Pavement Preservation
Program.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So you're moving those guys to the Pavement Preservation,
then if you hire, you're going to put them in the other areas that you've noted?
MR. GOODE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Alright.
MR. GOODE: And we're working primarily not with individuals but with vacancies.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: And there's nothing. There's no...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you for that clarification. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members, other questions? None? Okay, Director, are you, I don't know if
you have your Financial Analyst on board already. If you do, have you had them do an
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update of the financial analysis between the cost per lane mile that you presented us last year
versus your newer figures that you were going to work on?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, this, Mr. Chair, this year our two big projects we did for repaving. One is out
in Kahakuloa. That's ongoing. And the second one was Omaopio Road and that's ongoing.
So when those projects are complete and Omaopio has been difficult because of the rain
we've had up there and the shifting of resources constantly. It may have been too big of a
project for us to try to get at one time so for those that are watching or asking why or when's
it going to get done, I can only tell you soon. But hopefully the weather dries up and we'll
get it done. And Kahakuloa has been, it's going to be really, it's a tough job. So I think the
cost per foot is going to be pretty high in Kahakuloa but if you can imagine at some points, in
some places we had to back trucks in over a mile along that road just to dump a load. It's
been extremely difficult. Folks in Kahakuloa have been fantastic. We had a public meeting
out there, described what we wanted to do, gave them options on how to make it work and
they've been great to work with. So I think the costs are going to be a little higher because
we're tackling the jobs that are the tough ones for certain various reasons but we're get those
numbers when the jobs are completed.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Since you brought up Kahakuloa, you know, I understand
what you guys are doing. I was out there recently and I'm happy to see what's happening.
No, I really am. They're doing a fantastic job. I do have one question and this has come up
from not only the people from Kahakuloa but people from Maluhia Hills and all the way
across. Guardrails. And there are so many areas where you get one slight.. .1 don't even
want to call it a hump... but it was something that, you know, supposedly would stop a car or
at least slow a car down from going over. Not by much but anyhow. . . and I have driven that
road in the last week three times and I'm like, wow, you know, why do they have guardrails
in certain areas and then no guardrails for quite a lot of pull-off areas? And they're pull-off
areas. Is there a rationale behind that? Because, again, when somebody goes over that cliff,
not a good news at the bottom, you know. So is there any monies earmarked for that or will
be for in the near future? Because that road is heavily traveled. There's bikers now out
there. There's all kinds of, all kinds of things happening. That road is being used very much
so by the public, the tourists, the locals who live there and all these bikers are going up and
down that road. Mountain bikers and speed bikers. It's like wow, that's a road that's looking
for a disaster along some, very soon.
MR. GOODE: Well, in answer to your question about guardrails, yeah. Wherever we can get them
in we will. . . .(Clears throat)... Excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: My voice got scratchy here. I've asked my staff that actually on a site visit there
once and what they explained to me in a lot of situations is there's literally no room. We'd
-62-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 3, 2014

have to bring it in so far into the roadway because the guardrails gotta have something to
hold it -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, to support.
MR. GOODE: --if it gets hit, right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I understand.
MR. GOODE: If you put it on the edge of the cliff it's just going to go right with the car.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: So that's why we have it in certain places and there's other places where we used to
have them and they've just.. . oh, excuse me, they just can't withstand the force so we have to
look for other techniques. So that's why you see in some areas just a small berm, you know,
as a way to help but it's, yeah, it's a very difficult roadway to maintain and maintain any
standards. And you're right, there are a lot of bicyclists on it. There's going to be a lot more
now that it's nice.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Yeah, okay.
MR. GOODE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRWELLO: Your paving crew, is that the same crew that does your
patching? Are they able to do the patching or is that a different crew?
MR. GOODE: Ms. Crivello, generally it's a different crew with different trucks they take out and
equipment. Their position description is generally for painting. I mean that's it. If they had
to patch a pothole, I'm sure we could give them a little and they could pound it in if they
need to but.. .yeah, generally they're striping and we're behind on our striping quite frankly.
We've had a lot of turnover. In fact, yesterday we just got a new hire, Mr. Waki. Glad to see
him on board. I told him we've got a lot of work for him. Yeah, the striping is a very
important part. It's very important part of our paving operation. When we're paving we
need to come right back with the striping. I mean temporary striping or there's little
medallions they can put on and then get the striping on otherwise it's not complete.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIIVELLO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And I know, Department, that you work in
conjunction with other departments, whether it's Water, Sewer, or.. .but we just were
discussing Parks the other day and they also have a budget for patching work and I asked if
you folks were the ones who were called in to do such work and I guess no. They have their
own crew. And, but is it similar? I mean is your way to utilize, I mean is that's the best way
to do it is that they just have their own crew that deals with their parking, parking lots or
wherever they need their patching and you folks.. .you know what I mean? And not so much
consolidate the jobs?
MR. GOODE: You know, part of the difficulty is that we're Highway Funded and those funds are
specifically to be used on the highways and not parks. But that being said, if there's
opportunities to purchase materials together perhaps to get a better price or if they're in need
of some training we could perhaps provide some training -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: For equipment -MR. GOODE: --in that area.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --usage too, or no?
MR. GOODE: What's that?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That would.. .utilizing the same, you know, each other's
equipment if need be. If it's like a high-ticket item equipment if need be. But I guess for
patching it's, you're not using huge -MR. GOODE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --flatbeds and...
MR. GOODE: No. But what we are doing with the Parks Department, I had a meeting with them
actually just I think earlier this week, is they are, I think they probably discussed it in their
CIP about some of the repaving of parking lots. You know, a lot of their parking lots are in
pretty bad shape. In fact, so we helped kind of categorize what we think they needed as it
relates to the type of work we do. So their staff and our staff are going to work together on
two levels. One is our CIP. So when we go out, you know, let's say we're hiring a private
contractor to pave a road. If it's alongside, if a park's next door then, and if it needs paving,
perhaps we can do it on one contract, get a better price for both of us, they pay their share
with their funds and we pay our share with our funds. Secondly, we're going to look at our
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in-house work. So where we're doing in-house work, whether we're doing a seal coat, slurry
seal, or repaving, if we're doing it near a park and there's an opportunity, perhaps Parks
could buy the equipment or buy, you know, we get the bulk contract, reimburse us for that
contract work and while we're doing the road we'd jump into the park and do theirs too. So
we've had that meeting now. Our staffs are collaborating on okay, where're you gonna
work? What do you need? And hopefully we'd like to see at least one test case go this year
for each of those applications.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, well very good. I'm glad the dialogue's there so you can
collaborate, you know, in that sense. And just touching upon guardrails in Kahakuloa. I,
June 1988, I was telling Mr. Couch, I actually went off a cliff in Kahakuloa in a car. The car
is still there. It's a '69 Grand Prix and there was no guardrail obviously at the time when I
went over but really quickly afterwards, shortly after a guardrail went up real quick. It's
around the 8 mile marker. But there was a little berm but it didn't quite hold back the car so
it's a tricky road and I know your hardship in trying to pave and improve that area but it's
something that I'm here today sitting here talking to you after that but it's...
MR. GOODE: Very fortunate.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Yeah. But thank you for, yeah, the improvements out in
that area for sure. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Well, you said what I can. Just gotta see what we can do.
And, real quickly, Mr. Goode, you know, and I know there's other, what do you call, traffic
mitigation barriers that can go up too and may not be as intrusive so I would hope that you
guys would look at some of that also. I mean just not guardrails only but there's others that
can help. There's no 100 percent guarantee fool-proof way of stopping a vehicle, especially
if they're going too fast or come around that turn too quickly. You know, I realize that but I
think there are some mitigation, mitigating devices out there that could help because I've
seen that in other areas of the mainland. So, you know, if you'd look into that, we'd
appreciate it. And not only for Kahakuloa but other areas. Hana has similar situation
although that's not our highway, that's the State. You know, we're not responsible for that
but, you know, whenever we can protect, more safety, give more safety to our citizenry
especially when you see all these bikers. That really threw me off there the last couple of
times I've gone out there. There's a whole mess of bikers that go through that area mountain
biking and all that and talk about holding up traffic. And it became a real challenge because
there's not many places you can even bypass bikers, not when they're bunched up with five
or six of them too. So anyhow just, you know, that came from residents that live out there
and I happened to experience the last couple two, three times I've gone out there in the last
three weeks I found the same thing happening, like okay, now I gotta, you know, it takes one
picture to put 1,000 words in my mind and I got it. Thank you, Mr. Goode, for whatever you
can do.
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MR. GOODE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: You're welcome. Mr. Goode, on Page 626, Goal 2, Number 1, the third item
down, number of lane miles of roads we serviced in-house countywide annually. The Fiscal
Year 2013 number is 16 miles and the estimate for 2014 is eight miles. Do you have an
update on that number since the budget was generated or was this an estimate as to where
you would be?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Chair, it was just an estimate at the time because we didn't know how
much money we would get in 2014 so that eight, that number eight had carried over during
the budget season. It might be higher this year.
CHAIR WHITE: But...
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: So that eight might not be...
CHAIR WHITE: But wouldn't...
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: It's just an estimate.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah but the number, the estimate for 2014 would be, would have been generated
at the time you prepared the budget, wouldn't it? So where are we now?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: Do you have an update on that, you know.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Well, we can probably get an updated number from our staff.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Baz has been able to look it up.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I'm trying to look that up right now in their...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: I...
MR. BAZ: Looks like...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I agree with you. And it shows eight for 2014 and
then it jumps to 25 the next year -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you know, so yeah. You know, why the big disparity? I
agree with you on it.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, the reason I'm asking the question is that I was assuming this was an
estimate of what they anticipated being done with all the new equipment and the five
additional staff that we authorized last year, so.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, their quarterly report number of lane miles of roads resurfaced in-house
countywide annually looks like for the second quarter it was one. But I know that's not
correct.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Oh.
CHAIR WHITE: Well if you could give us an updated number?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Sure.
CHAIR WHITE: I would really appreciate it.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: We just got an updated number. So far about six miles, lane miles.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so what would you estimate you will have done by the end of the year with
the two projects that you're undertaking now?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: So we're looking at about maybe eight or ten, eight to ten in total.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Okay. Okay, any further questions, Members? Actually I'd like to have an
explanation of the... I'm assuming this is to finish out the outfitting of the paving and
preservation crew? The machinery listed on Page 626, Machinery and Equipment, on the top
of 626.
MR. GOODE: So you need a further explanation? Or...
CHAIR WHITE: Well, I'm assuming this is all to fill out your Paving and Preservation -MR. GOODE: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: --equipment list. And do you have any of these currently or are these all
additional items.
MR. GOODE: These are additional. A lot of the, like they mention here, the truck chassis for both
Molokai and Maui, like the seal coat that we mentioned. They come on these little chassis.
They actually get shipped over from O'ahu with the tank and the chassis together. And for
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us to have a chassis here allows us to bring over individual tanks more often, more
frequently.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: And to have maybe have one on Molokai and one over here. And so we just need a
little better complement of equipment so we can just keep the thing moving otherwise we
may be at a time where we have to wait for, ship it back, wait for it to come back. And so
this allows us to keep things moving. Liquid thermoplastic striper has to do with obviously
putting down the striping. And then the crew cab would be for, oh, obviously for the crew.
So we've got most of the gear but what we're finding is as we start doing work that, you
know, for us to keep things moving efficiently and having these guys work full time, we need
other complementing gear.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Okay.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
MR. BAZ: Page 17-66 of the Budget Details describes each piece of equipment individually and
their cost and it does reflect that they're all new equipment.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What page?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seventeen, sixty-six?
MR. BAZ: Seventeen dash sixty-six, correct.
CHAIR WHITE: So is it. . . would we be correct to assume that with these purchases the equipment
list for the Paving and Preservation is complete or are there additional purchases that are
going to be necessary next year?
MR. GOODE: I'd have to check but if there's any additional it'd probably be pretty minor.
CHAIR WHITE: Then we also have additional pieces of equipment on the Equipment Bond, right?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair. So back to page...
CHAIR WHITE: Page 732.
MR. BAZ: Yes, 732, the Department of Public Works, Highways Division, has a traffic striping
removal truck in the amount of 590,000, a truck tractor for Lanai in the amount of 340,000, a
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10- to 12-ton steel drum paving roller in the amount of 250,000, a 12-ton pneumatic tire
roller in the amount of 250,000 and an asphalt zipper in the amount of 200,000.
CHAIR WHITE: What is an asphalt zipper? Is that the ones that chew it up?
MR. GOODE: No, that would be more of a milling machine. I'm not sure what an asphalt zipper is.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. GOODE: I know they told me a long time ago and I can't remember.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, and Mr. Chair, I asked and I forgot what they said.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, it's nice to see that somebody with all dark hair has the same challenges that
those of us with lighter hair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: More on the gray-whitish side, yeah?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, what page is this?
CHAIR WHITE: This is on 732 in the CIP Section. It's the Equipment Bond under Capital
Improvement Finance.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I have a question. And it's not on something we've
been talking about but something that I've often wondered. I remember through the years I
used to see the street sweepers going up and down Wailuku, Kahului. And over the last few
years I haven't seen them very often. I see the State one out on the highways, one on Piilani
and all that. . . .(Coughs)... Excuse me. I don't see. Where are they and how are they
scheduled? Because I think I had four here. If I'm not mistaken, you have four street
sweepers. That's a tongue twister if you try that four times fast. Anyhow, and so where and
what, and where are they situated and where do they clean? Nobody wants to answer that
question, right.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: So we have one street sweeper here in the Central District, and then one
Lahaina, one on Lanai and I believe maybe one in Makawao as well. So that's, and then
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their hours are.. .they start really early. So I believe like midnight about maybe to 3:00,
sometimes 3:00 in the morning so we don't usually see them during the daytime.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I understand not daytime.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: But they are, you know, once they, yeah. Once their down with their
Street sweeping activities, then they'll join the crew and finish up the rest of the day doing
other activities as well.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So they start at either midnight or 3:00 in the morning?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Right. IJh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then they join whatever -MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --balance of the...
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: To finish up their day.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Finish up the day. Okay. I just was.. .and how many, and
now this is one maybe you're going to have to go back and research, how many miles do
they clean in an average four-hour period?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: That's a good question, Councilmember Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: In fact, we have them on GPS.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: So.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So we'll be able to get tracking now, you know.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yes, we do have them tracked.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, so... 'cause and again, I remember seeing them all
the time in Wailuku Town and I happen to drive around sometimes well past midnight and I
haven't seen them for a while so. But I see the State one. I'll run across the State machines
but I won't see our machine. Now I know Central has grown tremendously and so now it's a
lot more demanding if you're talking just one machine in Central Maui. But anyhow, I just
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was curious and I'd like to find out the miles they get done in an average day and I think GPS
could tell is that, right?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Chair, I also wanted to add one more thing -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, please go ahead.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: --regarding that performance measure. Performance measure on
Page 626, the FY '14 estimate for the number of lane miles of roads resurfaced in-house. I
wanted to also add that we kind of lost some time between July and November of this current
Fiscal Year because we had to go out through that procurement process for our materials. So
that kind of held us back for months, or kept us from doing any paving work. We actually
started work in December so if we had just a little bit more time I think we would have been
able to add additional projects in.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, I would like to know, if you could put together.. .1 don't expect you to have
them with you today but because we've invested a significant amount of money last year and
we're requesting it looks like about probably another almost $2 million in equipment this
year plus additional staffing again, I think it's appropriate for us to request that we have some
estimates of what the cost benefit is on the six miles that you've already completed. I would
appreciate it if you could put something together on that.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Sure. And Chair, just to clarify it, so that would also include all
pavement preservation activities that you also want numbers for seal coating and any kind of
slurry that we did this year?
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so this is not, the six miles is not paving alone it's patching and...
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Okay. So all?
CHAIR WHITE: Well, I was looking for paving numbers.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So just limit it to whatever -MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Sure.
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CHAIR WHITE: --paving you've done.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Sure.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So on that Page 732 at the very bottom, it does give kind of a
description of that asphalt zipper you were asking about but it doesn't give me a picture.
And it says primarily used for road reconstruction and repair and also used to rehabilitate
gravel roads so I can't picture the actual equipment and what it looks like but it...
MR. GOODE: We pulled up a picture of it over here.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, you did. Oh, is it, have a zipper-type look?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, kind of. It's, yeah, basically a loader and instead of the bucket on the loader it
has this, it's like a little milling machine that, to grind up all kinds of things so.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. I think I've seen.
MR. BAZ: It's got teeth in it that grind up the road as it goes out over.
CHAIR WHITE: And does it replace it behind you?
MR. BAZ: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So...
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: I gotta add something here. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, go ahead.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: When we met with staff on the equipment requests, one of the things I
asked them was to put together a book of pictures.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Show and tell.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: So.
CHAIR WHITE: If you have it, please bring it next time.
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MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, that would be good. We need visuals. But, Chair, a
follow-up?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Now that Mr. Baz has -CHAIR WHITE: Please proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --his mouth full. No, just kidding. As in purchasing, I guess,
you know, do I get, as Mr. Goode was mentioning how paving, if Parks is nearby, you know,
see if maybe we can get a better pricing if we do, you know, Parks' pavement and then the
highway but paid, you know, via appropriate funds. So as in purchasing these trucks, not the
specialized equipment or what have you but some of these pickups, you know crew cabs,
whatever, do we do collectively a big purchase, say whether it's, you know, Parks
Department or Public Works or Water or whoevers, Environmental Management? I mean,
do we deal with a particular company? Valley Isle, you know, do we go with Fords? Do we
go with, you know, I think probably with Police cars we go across the board with one type,
one model, one make and all that and maybe get a better pricing this way? Or I don't, I'm
not sure if you do it that way.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair and Member Cochran. We do go out to bid. We're required
to go out to bid. The trucks, the sedans we try to do a consolidated purchase because they're
fairly similar type of vehicles. What a lot of departments find is that the trucks and the
requirements of those trucks vary pretty significantly. Whether they be crew cab or standard
cab or four-wheel drive or non-four-wheel drive or need utility beds or need lifts and
different things like that so it makes it a little bit more difficult to do consolidated purchases.
The departments themselves, I've noticed, will do, if they're buying, you know, three or four
trucks that are exactly the same, they'll bid it out all at once but it'll tend to be small batches
like that where at the most it'll be three or four trucks at a time.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well, thank you. As long as you're trying to utilize the best,
you know, way rather than kind of piecemeal it and, you know, if there's a way to
consolidate then wonderful. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Just so I've got these numbers correct, when you mentioned the six miles, I
thought you were mentioning that the six miles was all paving. Is that only partially paving?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: That's correct. Up until from December until now that's six miles of
paving.
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CHAIR WHITE: Of paving.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay because I was thinking that you were suggesting that it was part paving, part
sealing, or slurry seal. But that's in a separate?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yeah, but.. .yes. That's correct. Just paving. But we also wanted to
add that pavement preservation doesn't just include paving but also includes the sealing.
Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: No, I understand the equipment that we've ordered and will continue to order does
more than just the paving, but I wanted just to get a sense on the paving. So to be clear, the
seal-coated miles in 2013, we had one and in 2014 we had four. Is that correct? And we're
suggesting 10 for this upcoming year?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: That's correct.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, and then one of slurry seal for this year, right?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, and then 16 miles of paving in 2013 and that will, currently that's six and
it's likely to end up between eight and ten?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Correct.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Members, other questions? Okay, seeing none, we'll move on
to Traffic Management Programs.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes?
MR. BAZ: I'm sorry. Before we move on to Traffic Management Program, the Highways
Administration Program, I did have an answer for Member Crivello.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. BAZ: This is regarding the telephone costs of the Highway Administration. It has been
historically budgeted at $20,000. So while the actuals were less, the budget has remained flat
at $20,000.
COUNCILMEMBER CR1 VELLO: Thank you.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. With that, before we move on we'll take our midafternoon break. So
please be back here at 3:10. Recess. . . .(gavel)...
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

2:58 p.m.
3:13 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . .(gavel)... This Budget and Finance Committee will come back to order.
We'll continue with the review of Public Works and then we'll have the Director start with
the Traffic Management Program and...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: What page?
MR. GOODE: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, Page 6...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Six-thirty.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: No, actually...
MR. GOODE: I have 628.
CHAIR WHITE: Six-twenty...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Six twenty-eight?
CHAIR WHITE: I have to put my glasses on.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, I'm sorry. Six twenty-eight. I'm sorry. That's where it
begins, yeah. Six twenty-eight. Sorry.
MR. GOODE: Alright, so this program handles the maintenance of our traffic signals and striping
and I have a flat budget here as it relates to E/Ps and minor increases primarily due to
Collective Bargaining agreement.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Six twenty-eight.
MR. GOODE: Any other changes? Go ahead.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: And yes, we had equipment last year but we removed that. We're not
requesting any equipment associated with the Traffic Management Program. We did have a
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number or two additional performance measures in here measuring or monitoring the number
of lane feet that's restriped and the number of crosswalks that get restriped as well because
we do get a lot of requests for that. Also to provide professional development and to ensure
that we are in compliance with the 2009 MUTCD retro reflectivity standards and that's our
program in which we replace some of our old traffic signs, the regulatory marking signs and
bring them to a better or higher standard.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Members, questions? Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I have couple of questions. Number one, these are also
inclusive of traffic signals, right? Traffic lights?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that's correct? Okay. And so there's a number of us
throughout this County that feels some of the traffic signals that are in place in certain areas
are not adequate. We keep getting complaints. And I'll start with the one right by Longs and
Walmart [sic], Kuihelani and Waiale. That light, you know, I have a lot of complaints that
light changes too quick. And I guess you guys haven't figured where the traffic flows,
whether it's flowing on Waiale, off of Waiale both ways. Once Foodland comes in, I know
the dynamics are kind of changing almost rapidly over there but I have a lot of complaints
and that's because that's my area and that's, I get the most complaints is right there. Maui
Lani but I think Maui Lani is State, right? That Maui Lani and where...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: By Kuihelani?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That's State.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's State, okay. So I'll leave that one, you know, I'll go
call Freddy and talk to that. And there's others even in Mr. Guzman's District. Central Maui
especially I find a lot of the lights don't seem to work with the traffic that is coming through.
And maybe it's just certain times of the day. Another one that I get a lot of complaints is
right over here by Kaahumanu and Sandhills. What is that, Pio Drive? Pio Drive. I get a lot
of complaints over there that people coming out of Pio Drive wait long and, you know, at
certain times of the day. In the mornings especially, Saturday and Sunday, they wait and
they wait. And some of them take it upon themselves to go and going through red lights. So
anyhow, who do we address those concerns to and how often are they addressed as far as
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your Departments are concerned because that's part of traffic management, yeah? Nobody
wants to answer that question again.
MR. GOODE: No, you're talking to the right people as far as who to go to. Those are the issues
that we look at pretty frequently and you're right, things change often. So lately in Kahului
where we're doing Wakea, it changes the traffic dynamics. You know, people avoid certain
areas that are closed, obviously and so it puts another additional burden on a particular
signal. So certain signals have different amount of smarts than other signals. How much
they can sense how much traffic is coming, what their maximum green times are. Other
signals have more limited capability. Our traffic signal technicians have the ability to do it,
you know, on site. They can if they're at a location and they're doing maintenance work
they can see how it's programed and see what the activity level is and change it on the fly or
we'll bring in our Traffic Engineering Section and they'll do a more rigorous analysis and
see what changes can be done to accommodate the traffic. But in general, you know, where
we can upgrade and make our signals smarter it'll make for a better driving experience for
everyone and a safer experience and you're right. Some of those are State highways. So
anytime a County road meets a State road it's a State-controlled signal. Waiale and Kuikahi
is County-County, so that's our signal. We've, I know for a fact we've adjusted that one a
few times. Doesn't mean it can't. . . it may need to be adjusted again. They're doing a lot of
work on Waiale right now so that's going to change the pattern yet again temporarily so. I
would say just let us know and we'll look into it and see what we can do.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I thank you for that because, you know, that's one of
those areas where. . . and another one is by the Maui Memorial Park, that road that comes
across from Maui Lani down, I forget the name of the street, but you know where I'm
referring to?
MR. GOODE: Waiinu.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Waiinu, yes. Thank you very much. That's another one,
mornings, afternoon traffic all the way up the hill, around the corner, and almost back to
Maui Lam and so again consideration may be needed for a traffic signal there. And I
know...
MR. GOODE: It's actually, it's under design.
CHAIR WHITE: With all...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's under design already, good.
CHAIR WHITE: With all due respect, we've got lots to cover and I think we need to go back to...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. You know, I get the hint. I get the hint.
Just tell me I'm saying too much about my area. I apologize. Thank you.
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CHAIR WHITE: No, not about your area. I just think, you know, we're, these are things that...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: They're not budget.
CHAIR WHITE: We need to...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I want -CHAIR WHITE: We need to tell them...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --my chance
CHAIR WHITE: Right. But we can...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's my chance to ask them, so thank you very much.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. We need to get back to the budgetary items. Any further questions on the
Traffic Management Program? Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Just one quick statement. I want to say I'm really happy to see this
added in this goal about the markings and I know Mr. Goode and I already talked about this.
I would really like to see our markings improved because with the bad weather we've been
having and it's raining and you're looking for that white line on the side of the road to help
you from going off the edge and you can't see it. So I'm really, really happy to see this in
here and I fully support this. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. With that, let's move on to Garage Services Program. Mr. Goode?
MR. GOODE: Okay, so as we mentioned earlier, the E/Ps have been transferred to Special
Maintenance and General Fund and the remaining costs here are those related to work on our
Highways Equipment and Vehicles. I don't see, I don't know if you have anything else to
add? We have one truck in here. You know, they handle field fixes, like welding out in the
field. So anyway, it's much smaller than previous years.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. You know, when going through this last night I was
looking at that saying well, wait a minute. If you've, going to remove everything out of there
where are we getting, why do we need funds for Gas, Diesel, Oil Interfund and then also
vehicle? Why wouldn't that be moved to that other Department? It's kind of, it just kind of
looks weird getting a vehicle for a Program that has no people in it. I'm just saying.
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MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: For that, the welder, the welding truck, that's still a Highway Fund type
of activity so that's why we, I believe that's why we still kept it in our Highway Fund
operations. And as far as the Gas, Diesel, Oil Interfund, that's also, I mean it would be
related to any kind of Highway Funded activity that we have.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, so.. .Mr. Chair and Member Couch, so what, I mean, the Highway Fund, the
Highway Division is still going to be using fuel, maintaining vehicles for Highway Fund
services, right. You know, road, bridge, drainage, all that kind of stuff so they have to pay
for those. That's why the operational costs are in there.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah but wouldn't that be in the groups that it, that it's...
MR. BAZ: No, they'd still need to pay for that. Whether the group bills them back and gets
reimbursed for it, the money has to be budgeted for those in fuel and things like that. That's
why it's in Gas, Diesel, Oil Interfund because it's being transferred to the General Fund to
pay for that fuel.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I'm fine for that but the truck I would think it would be
underneath whatever group is going to use the truck as opposed to a group with no people.
So who's going to use the truck in the Highway, in the Garage Services Program? I, it, I, it
might be an accounting thing. I don't know but it just kind of strikes me as odd.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, it could be either way I suppose. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So, Director or Mr. Baz, to Mr. Couch's point, are we to understand that all the
materials, supplies, other costs, services, and utilities remaining in the Garage Services
Program are solely Highway related and none of the expenses are for any other part of the
operation of non-Highway-Funded parts of this Department or other departments?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair. That's correct. That's why we developed it.
CHAIR WHITE: So the utilities is just part of the actual physical garage?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: You see, I don't quite understand. I'm kind of along the same lines as Mr. Couch.
If we're switching, we're switching the costs of the, you know, the wages out and then
charging back the Highway Fund, it would seem that these would be handled the same way.
Is that, I'm assuming there's very little change in these costs except for the $68,000 reduction
in materials and supplies.
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MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, the, if you look at the Special Maintenance Program, County Garages,
Maui and Molokai, they have electricity costs and things because they have been paying
those out of those Special Maintenance Program Funds and these charges were left in there
because they are Highway related not Garage Services related.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. What is under materials and supplies because it seems like that's gone
down very little with the transfer out? I would have thought that was for materials and
supplies for other, you know, for vehicles for other departments?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, maybe what I'll do is work and we can provide you an accounting of those
activities back and forth.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I would be more comfortable if we could of, you know, it's difficult to tie
the pages in the Budget to the Budget Details. So if you can help us do that, I would
appreciate it. Okay, Members, other questions? Seeing none, we're at the end of the
Operating Budget Section and we'll move to the CIP, which is on Page 791, or that's the lead
page so the, we'll start, I don't think it's necessary to go through the list on Page 793 and
four, so we'll just move right to the first item on, which is listed on Page 796.
MR. GOODE: Okay, so Mr. Chair, I think I may have different page numbering but first, is the first
one you have here, the...
CHAIR WHITE: Is the Countywide Municipal Separate Storm Water Sewer Systems Discharge
Program.
MR. GOODE: Correct. Okay. So this is the first time we've been funding this. This the program
we mentioned in the IEM Committee general overview we had a few weeks ago. The MS4
Program is the new program that we're under Federal mandate on an NPDES but now the
Wailuku-Kahului urbanized area, which actually stretches all the way to Paia, is over 50,000
people, 55,000 per the last census and therefore we need to participate in this Storm Water
Program. We have, we had a deadline of last week to submit the permit. That deadline was
met. We hired Kennedy/Jenks Consulting Engineers using some of the existing Countywide
Drainage Funds to make that happen and we will be incurring additional costs to manage this
permit. I don't know how long. As long as we need to have the permit, which could be
indefinitely. So we don't know exactly what will be required here but very likely we're
going to be having additional mapping and cataloguing of all our drainage systems, perhaps
some public education pieces among other things so we need to show that we're ready to take
on some of those activities we've budgeted or asked for $300,000 this coming fiscal year.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, questions? Mr. Couch.
COIJNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This is the one, we even talked about it in
D.C. with our Legislators a little bit. It's just crazy that we, you know, we're considered an
MPO, or what is it? The other term is U134 or something like that?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: MS4 by including Paia in this area here. So but we did get some
comments back from the Department of Transportation so I'm asking here if you guys can
work with them to see if it's worth us, it, for us to still lobby to get that number moved up to
75,000 possibly or get Paia out of there. I don't know how we can do it but if it would be
worth it, 'cause we're spending in the next two years wanting to spend at least $800,000 just
because we got a new designation now. And this is just the tip of the iceberg in my opinion.
I think we're going to have to spend a lot more because of they decided to put the population
of Paia in with Central Maui and make it over 50,000. So this is something that we have to
deal with and have to determine whether or not we want to push forward to making that
number a little higher or something with our delegation, our Congressional delegation to see
if we can fix this if Countywide that's something we want to fix. So hopefully you and the
Department of Transportation can get together and determine whether or not this is
something to fight for because this is a lot more money all of a sudden. Now are we getting
more money back on the transportation side or not? We're not sure. That's where it's kind
of a gray area and we could use some guidance from you guys who it is affecting the most.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Director, any comments?
MR. GOODE: You know, as to whether or not to lobby, a delegation for changing the law, you
know, I need to talk to my boss, I guess but the reality is we need to comply. We don't have
the permit conditions yet. And, you know, whether or not... I mean, the goals are laudable.
There's nothing wrong with having cleaner water, right? I guess the question is, you know,
is this, is it really fair for this small of a community to have to deal with these larger steps
that say Honolulu is under? You know, the cost per, you know, you and I individually, all of
us individually, the cost is going to be higher than say somebody in City and County of
Honolulu. But I don't know yet what the permit conditions are going to be so to me there's
got to be some kind of balance here. But at this point, you know, we need to comply.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I would agree that we need to make sure we're doing what we can to keep
our nearshore waters clean. Is there any indication as to what kinds of work this is going to
require? Because I think it's relatively easy if you're looking at a, it's something like the
mill water. You know, that's one source and it all is generated in one place so controlling
that to me is an obvious need and it has been for a long time but if we're trying to control all
water from everywhere, and maybe you can give us a better idea of what exactly the
direction is that the, that this requirement is heading, how are we, what are we separating?
MR. GOODE: The program calls for, I think, six different elements, some of which we're already
doing. Construction BMPs and post-construction BMPs. We already have ordinances on
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that. One thing they'd be looking at that we don't currently have are illegal or illicit
discharges to the storm water system. Example, I tend to always want to use this, if
somebody just empties out their radiator onto their driveway and into our storm system, I
don't think there's any way to cite them currently.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: So that would be something we more than likely have to be coming back to this body
with some type of ordinance down the road. And the ordinance wouldn't be just specific to
this particular urban area, it'd probably be Countywide just like our BMP ordinances.
There's a public participation and public education pieces as part of this as well as increased
maintenance on our side of the storm system and perhaps even street cleaning, keeping the
streets cleaner. So all those activities should roll up into, you know, cleaner water going into
our nearshore waters and how much of that, you know, can you quantify and actually say,
well, here's where it was. Here's the baseline and here's how much it's changed. If your
trying to quantify all this, that requires us to do water sampling of water coming into the
system, through this area, and into the water, and now we're responsible for all the mauka
waters and coming down, that's where it could get really unwieldy. And so I just don't know
that, what they're going to be looking at here initially but we definitely gotta hit those six
program elements. And so early indications are that we're likely gonna have to do a better
understanding of our existing system. And mind you our system, our drainage systems, I
mean look at Kahului. It's kind of hit and miss. There's areas that don't have drainage at all.
We have dry wells and then our system goes into Kaahumanu Avenue, which is DOT. And
DOT has its own MS4 permit and it goes to the Harbor or to the Airport. They have their
own MS4. So we got all these three, all of us have these MS4 programs we gotta do and how
they're all going to work together and what the responsibilities are I just don't know yet. So
there's certainly aspects of it that might, that make sense.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, sure.
MR. GOODE: I mean, an illicit discharge to the storm water system, I think we could all agree
that's something that needs to be done. Public education, you know, it could probably go a
long ways with cleaning the water through an education process. Physical controls could be
a lot more expensive. You know, do you want to put catch, something that's in every single
catch basin and try and maintain that? That can be really, really expensive and I don't know
how effective it would be. So we'll see, Chair. You know, we'll be working closely with
Department of Health and we have a team set up here internally because the MS4 permit,
while it does, is housed in Public Works relates to all public, all County facilities. So the
Police Department, Fire Department, Parks, they all come under the one permit. So we're all
actually all working on it together.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Any further questions on this item? Seeing none, we'll move to
the next item, which is Countywide Drainage Improvements.
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MR. GOODE: Okay, Chair, so this is an item we have every year. It's a fund that's used to
accomplish a lot of different tasks, sometimes to supplement existing projects and add
drainage or correct drainage deficiencies. We'll take on small projects that come up
periodically. In fact, I have a fellow waiting for me when I walked in today with an old
drainage problem in Kihei and, you know, depending what we end up doing, who knows?
We'll probably end up using this fund. So it's an important fund. It allows us, it gives us a
lot of flexibility to take on drainage issues as they come up during the course of the year.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so there are no specific programs that you have outlined in any sort of plans
for 2015?
MR. GOODE: I could probably come back with a short list, I guess, of things we're looking to use
it but a lot of this comes up during the course of projects or if there's another project that has
a cost overrun. This is a place that we can use those funds. And when I say cost overrun, it
doesn't mean because it's mismanaged, it's usually because we've changed the scope and
added.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. GOODE: Added to the project, so, but I could probably come back if you needed a small list of
things that we're seeing coming up.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. One thing that might be helpful to do is
define drainage problems because to me it could be one of two things and the one that's more
important at least to anybody who lives in the coastal areas is all the runoff from the storms.
That seems to me is a drainage problem, all that junk going into the water but to an engineer
the drainage problem is getting stuff, keeping the lowlands from flooding. So what is a
drainage problem in this case?
MR. GOODE: Well, mainly it'd be used in conjunction with other projects. We could have a
localized flooding problem. The one that came to me today just happens on one street and it
just happens, I mean, there might be some mauka flows, I mean it's Kihei, right. So there's
some mauka flows that come in the area but it could be, I mean we could have a culvert
blowout in a storm, so we want to come back and correct it immediately. I mean, it's a
couple hundred thousand dollars, we can tap right into this fund. But it's, yeah, it's certainly
not enough money to take care of, I mean, of a very large flooding issue or, you know,
10,000 acres of drainage basin coming down into one location.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You can see where our concerns are. I mean, there are problems
that the engineers have to keep the water from flooding but then that means it goes straight
into the ocean and we need it to be clean going into the ocean so there's all kinds of
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competing outcomes that we have to deal with and I don't know if this can address some of
that or not?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, it's probably not enough money to address it. But, I mean, I actually just
thought of a project. We mentioned earlier about the State highway that, in Keokea. They
had all that, that big runoff came. I actually went out and looked at it that Saturday evening
and there was still, it was, water was still following. By Monday morning, we finally got the
call. Well, guess what, Thompson Road got blown out just right above. There's a culvert
there, a 24 inch culvert, it's, it went way over that and all over the place so road got washed
out there. I mean that's the type of, this money and probably FY '14 funds will be used to
make those corrections so it allows us to, you know, quickly get things done.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: One more, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So that means that the stuff that you did at the Kulanihakoi Gulch
would have come out from this ones, the temporary repair and at the Suda Store Gulch there?
Both of those would have come out of this fund?
MR. GOODE: They could have. I don't know if they did because each of those projects we had
specific County funds also for them. So depending on the fiscal year, where we are in the
fiscal year. Sometimes we have project funds and if we don't then we can utilize this fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Other questions, Members? It appears that 2014 in the funding details down
below, the 2014 funding for any new construction came out of the General Fund but it looks
like this year it's being switched to bonds. Is that correct, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yes, that's correct.
CHAIR WHITE: But wouldn't this type of repair and maintenance be General Funded instead of
bonded?
MR. BAZ: The length of time of the repair generally would allow it to be Bond Funded. The
lifetime. It may be something that comes up and it may be small but we're not proposing
that repair is going to be hopefully lasting for a long period of time. So that's why it would
be allowable for Bond Fund.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. I know it's allowable but I have in the past, the past practice has been
General Fund or Bond?
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MR. BAZ: It's been a mix depending on the cash available. Last year, we had a significant amount
of cash available for projects. This year we don't.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so we're cash short this year. Okay, any further questions on this item?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And so, Mr. Goode, you mentioned that incident
that occurred, I guess, up Thompson Road or up in the Keokea area or something or other
and there's existing culvert or something that got topped off. But this fund is utilized for
areas that have lacking existing drainage? Is that what this project justification and I guess
the way this fund is to be used is for places that do not have any type of drainage? Or no,
that's a wrong interpretation?
MR. GOODE: Well, I guess it's lacking.. .say the Thompson Road one, it was certainly lacking in
terms of capacity. It had one but...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well, yeah.
MR. GOODE: It was inadequate.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But I don't know, I, it just seems like someplace that has
nothing at all so now you're going to go in and create a drainage system to assist, you know,
flooding issue in whatever area these localized area that it occurred in. So I mean, I don't
know. I was just wondering if that's what this was meant for in particular but.. .and then
down below pretty much the funding is new construction, new construction, which again, I
guess rehabbing or renovating or I don't know, improving or expanding. That could be new
construction to an existing, in a sense, I guess. So is that, I mean...
MR. GOODE: I mean, I don't know, I may have to refer to Mr. Bar here because to me all
constructions new. I don't know what old construction would be.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well, right.
MR. GOODE: Versus maintenance.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I mean, I know it's needed so it's just, making sure that we're
utilizing it, you know. I mean, you know, I'm all for improving our drainage.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
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MR. BAZ: The Chapter 3.04.040 Section 040 of the Maui County Code requires the Capital
Improvements Program to describe projects and with the following details and they have a
list of different things. Land acquisition, design, construction, furnishing, maintenance, and
staffing. And so this would be the construction, I guess maybe the term "new" in there
makes it confusing but that's construction.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, we'll move on to Countywide Facility Building Improvements.
MR. GOODE: Okay, Mr. Chair, this is for projects here on this campus. In this case, we've
identified some proposed projects be utilized with some of these funds. Irrigation upgrades
and landscaping, air conditioning repair next door at the Kalana Pukui Building, wrapping up
our Fire Sprinkling Project, which would be this floor and the 7th floor, I believe, air
conditioning piping and replacements. We have some issues in a couple locations. And
some safety improvements, primarily in some of the electrical rooms where we've had some
deficiencies there that need to get fixed. And those projects, my staff did indicate, would be
approximately $700,000 and leaving us a balance of about four, four and a quarter to handle
all the variety of miscellaneous projects that come up during the course of the year. And
that's it.
CHAIR WHITE: Questions, Members? Director, it appears that we have about $470,000 available
out of the $500,00 that was appropriated last year. We still have $166,000 that's encumbered
from 2013. Do you have a sense of how much of that 470 will be utilized and for what,
which projects? Is part of that for the other phase of the sprinkler system and how close are
we to encumbering that?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, I think the, well the fire sprinkling system is probably a '13 project but this
year I know we had some things just go out to bid. I can't recall what they were but I know
in the past in speaking with staff is that they've been really tight on this index code over the
years so I could certainly get. . . do you happen to know? I could certainly get back to you
folks with where we are. Remember, these funds do last for eighteen months I believe.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Right.
MR. GOODE: So we do have until December 31stto encumber or spend the funds.
CHAIR WHITE: And do you have any approximate costs for the five projects that you've outlined.
MR. GOODE: Yes. Going in the same order that they're listed, 100,000; 200,000; 75; 120; and
200.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, questions for the Director? No? Okay, moving along.
-86-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 3, 2014

MR. GOODE: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: The next item is Countywide Road Servicing, Road Resurfacing and Pavement.
MR. GOODE: Pavement Preservation. Yeah, this is our favorite account. This is where we get the
bulk of the work done for our contracted repaving work. This year, last two or three years,
we've taken a portion of those funds and the Highways Division has utilized them to
purchase asphalt and asphalt materials for seal coat and tack coat and things like that. This
year, we're looking at, there's 5.5, about a million three would be utilized by the Highways
Division to buy materials. And so the balance, the 4.2 would then be spread throughout all
the districts to hit the roads that are at the top of our list that Rowena mentioned earlier that
are ready to be primarily all repaving. There's some mill, we call mill and fill where we take
off two inches and put on two inches so it varies from road to road what we do.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, questions on this item? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do we have an actual so far what you've done? It looks like you're
doing really good at spending it down. Do we carry over very much?
MR. GOODE: No, we're usually over. We're usually over and then use the next year's to
reimburse whatever we're over. We use this, that's why I said it's our favorite account.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Excellent.
MR. GOODE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Excellent, thank you.
MR. GOODE: And in general, I mean I think we're somewhere between last year I think 90 to
95 percent, all the funds that were allotted to the Department were spent or encumbered and
some that were not spent we came in for budget amendment saying hey, you know, we can't
get to this project. We want to sub, we want to do this one so we come in and swap them
out. So I think we're doing pretty good at that. In fact, I think Mr. Baz at one point told me
whatever Highway Fund balance was out there is diminishing because we're moving through
it so.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, the Highway Funds carryover/savings if you noticed over the last few years has
significantly decreased and that's because the Department has done a good job spending
down the CIP monies.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Other questions, Members?
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MR. GOODE: Do you want to do this one?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Next Item, CBS 1024 is the Countywide Safety Improvements Program
and this one relates to a portion of Councilmember Victorino's concerns regarding
guardrails. So we do get requests for guardrails, signs, shoulder widening, streetlights is
another one. We have our streetlight program that's covered under Countywide Safety
Improvements. And also another real popular item that we've been getting a lot of requests
for are those traffic beacons, you know, the red lights? The red flashing lights and also
pedestrian signals. So all of that comes under this program.
CHAIR WHITE: Questions, Members? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I know we've been getting, at least in our
District, a lot more requests for the flashing crosswalk signs, etc. Is this enough, I guess, to
cover for that or only because I have a feeling that we'll get a lot more requests. And they
are safer. I mean, people, you look at the one at Kanaloa here where it's just flashing yellow
all the time. People ignore that. But if it's the rapid flashing LEDs it wakes people up
because it's only flashing when somebody wants to cross. So are we looking at expanding as
many of our crosswalks as possible with that. And I know people are concerned about too
many signs and too many lights but there are places where I think they're very important,
especially a very poorly lit crosswalk that's on South Kihei Road for sure.
MR. GOODE: I think we'd evaluate it on a case-by-case basis. And you're right, where there's
the.. .where the lighting is poor then it's probably more needed. If there's a lot of pedestrian
volume then it's more likely needed. Would we do it on every crosswalk, no. I mean just
look here on Wells Street. We probably got five or six just going down the road. Do we
want that on every single one of those, probably not. So I think we gotta evaluate it but
they're, I'm not sure of the exact cost but they're not that expensive because they're
standalone. They're PV powered and there's one across the road and they use a wireless
technology to talk to each other so, and you don't have to have a big concrete base to put 'em
down so they're pretty easily deployable and they're not too expensive. I think this is
enough funds for now and it certainly hasn't prevent. . .1 have not heard from staff yet that we
don't have money to install 'em. Have you heard that? No.
CHAIR WHITE: They put one in on Baldwin Avenue for us. I believe the cost was around
$10,000. But the funds were available and they are for the most part effective. I'm sure
there are drivers that don't heed the warning much but...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Any other questions? Okay, moving on to the next item, Countywide Bridge
Improvements.
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MR. GOODE: Okay, this is the Countywide Bridge. This is again another Countywide Fund that
we've used for bridge type improvements. We do have smaller projects that come up from
time to time including things like, you know, the guardrail, kind of guardrail approach to a
bridge gets hit, we gotta come out and do a guardrail fix. These are the type of funds we'd
use for that. If we have to do any, if something comes up and we need to get some quick
structural inspections, we gotta hire out for that and then we'd utilize this fund. And we can
also use it to supplement other ongoing bridge projects as may be needed.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Questions, Members? Seeing none, Countywide Pavement Preservation.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, this is much like the other fund we mentioned earlier but this would just be for
pavement preservation so most of this if not all these funds will be going to the Highways
Division for the use in seal-coating projects and slurry seal. That's it. That's it, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Questions, Members? No questions, moving on to the next program.
MR. GOODE: Okay, next is...
CHAIR WHITE: Countywide Speed Hump and Speed Table Program.
MR. GOODE: Right. So last year we retitled this to add speed tables because the number of speed
hump requests are dwindling and last year we had a number of speed table requests. You
may recall that our speed hump ordinance only addresses speed humps and not speed tables
and there's a difference. Speed tables are used on collector roads and you can generally go
out, up to about 30 miles an hour on them whereas speed humps are more on the residential
roads and go 20 miles an hour. And with the speed hump program we want all the
neighborhoods to sign a petition and be involved, et cetera, whereas speed tables we just
don't have the supporting ordinance so we would prefer that the speed tables get mentioned
here at the Council floor and at least have a public discussion about them. So currently we
have two, two requests that we haven't fulfilled with our last funding and that's on Baldwin
Avenue near Makawao El and also on Keonekai Road where we've had a number of
requests. And so these funds would be used for those speed tables but also any speed hump
requests that come in.
CHAIR WHITE: Questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch, followed by Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. You know, you mention Keonekai Road here and
there's also a Safe Routes To School Project on Keonekai Road. Are those two separately
funded items? And are they two separately, I mean are there... I understand the Safe Route
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To School is going to be a raised crosswalk and then you'd have speed tables elsewhere as
well?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, I think farther down Keonekai.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. GOODE: That's where they're looking.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And also, I don't know, maybe Ms. Baisa's going to ask about this
but last night we had a request for Kokomo Road, as long as you're redoing part of it that
there was concerns about potential speed tables that they would like to see something go in.
MR. GOODE: I think we're...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So do we need to put, is this where we need to put that?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, I'm not sure if Kokomo will qualify but I think it'd be better that it be
mentioned here. So if that's, if you think that might be, well if one of the bodies are
interested in adding it. I can't guarantee it at this point without, you know, talking to staff
and having them analyze it but more than likely when Kokomo gets reconstructed, has a nice,
beautiful road, we'll be getting speed complaints. So, but I don't know if this, again, I don't
know if this solution will work but I think, you know, by having this discussion and putting it
in the ordinance at least gives us the ability to look at it and implement it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, Mr. Chair, how would we do that? Would we just ask to have
that put in there or I'm not sure?
CHAIR WHITE: You would just add to the project description as he suggested. You know, I would
totally agree with him. As long as you've got potholes, those are speed calming devices.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Calming, traffic calming devices, yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Traffic calming devices. I know they are when I'm driving. Ms. Baisa, you had a
question?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes, and not the same question. I was wondering on the speed table
that's going to go in on Baldwin Avenue near Makawao El, where is that going to go? Is that
going to go more towards 'Ukiu or more towards Freitas Lane or further down or.. .where are
you going to put it? There's not a whole lot of room there to stop the cars before they get
there.
CHAIR WHITE: I would assume it would go right where the crossing guard is in the morning.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And that's where 'Ukiu is.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, I'm not positive. My hunch is it's at 'Ukiu.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah, 'cause there's not a whole lot of room. I mean it's just a
really short area. And they do have a crossing guard. Okay.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: To be clear about adding Kokomo Road to this, a proviso might be most appropriate
since I'm channeling the person that normally sits in this seat here. That's what he would
recommend.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's wearing off on you too.
MR. BAZ: If you do want to have very clear control of that then a proviso would be appropriate.
CHAIR WHITE: Well I, my concern with a proviso is it would infer that they have to do it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: Where as I would rather leave it to them to determine whether it's appropriate or
not because I agree. I mean we've got speed tables in places that surprise people and I'm not
sure, you know, I know they would do a very thorough analysis before they put things in and
I believe it has to go through a process of neighbors signing...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: Petitions.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, basically signing a petition or providing approval or something to that
nature.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, that's for the speed humps.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, speed humps.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, not for speed tables.
CHAIR WHITE: Not for speed tables?
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MR. GOODE: Yeah, 'cause speed tables are generally on the collector roads. I mean oftentimes
there are homes in there but sometimes there's not and it's just more of a thoroughfare that
connects neighborhoods.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. But you would go through the analysis anyway?
MR. GOODE: Oh yeah.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: I had one more to add. Staff just wrote in and said that there was also
after the printing of this document there was another request for speed tables on East Kuiaha
Road.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: So maybe we should add that in as well.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We've got that noted. Other questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. And so the, I know speed humps, bumps,
whatever, lumps, you need to get like 80 percent of signatures in then nearby neighboring
area. Is that the same process with these speed tables or raised crosswalks? Or how do these
work?
MR. GOODE: No because, no. A lot of times these are collector roads that may not have neighbors
on them and it's, in the literature it's actually different. Humps. Humps and tables. So
again, the humps are for 20 miles an hour and then the tables are for 30 miles an hour and
different types of road so yeah. Our existing ordinance only discusses the speed humps. It
would be something we could certainly look at. I mean, should speed tables, should we, you
know, look at amending the ordinance to discuss how speed tables are implemented or right
now we've kind of invented this process. Right? We've been getting more requests for
speed tables and we're taking it through this budget process.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: If we want to refine that in an ordinance, it's something we could all look at.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Well, I think it's.. .thank you, Chair. You're doing it
case-by-case and by referral or, you know, people requesting and then you're going out and
checking it and checking out the area to see if it's, you know, doable and stuff so. I mean
I'm good with the way it is but if it needs to be put into ordinance then I think it'd come
through my Committee, probably, to discuss so if you figure that's the appropriate route then
by all means we can do that. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Do speed tables currently require an ordinance?
MR. GOODE: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, any other questions? Seeing none, let's move on to the next
program, Countywide Bikeway Improvements.
MR. GOODE: Okay, so for this year we're looking at three projects. They're on various stages.
First is on Liloa. It's continuing the bike path along Liloa up to the Kihei Park. So from
Lipoa to the Park. On Onehe'e, we have a re-striping project to add bike lanes and change
around how the travel lanes work and that came out of that Comprehensive Bike and
Pedestrian Plan for Central Maui. And then finally Spreckelsville, which would be the final
phase of the Paia bike path that goes all the way around the airport, which is currently in the
draft EA stage.
CHAIR WHITE: Questions, Members? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Liloa Drive one, is that, I thought we
had funding for it last fiscal year, this current fiscal year. I'm assuming this is from Lipoa to
the park?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, that's what I thought. I mean I could double check but again depending on
where the project's at, it may, if it's, we have design issues that we still need to work through
or if we need to do an EA for instance. So these are the kinds of funding that's flexible, that
allows us to address issues as they come up and keep the projects moving along.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Members, any other questions on Bikeway Improvements? Seeing none,
we'll move on to Countywide Sidewalk Improvements.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: This next item is for the design and construction for sidewalk
improvements. Any kind of either improvements or new construction. With FY '15, we're
requesting 500,000 and this would involve the construction of a sidewalk on 'Ohukai Road
from South Kihei Road to Pi'ilani Highway and we're also looking at other sidewalks on
Wain&e, perhaps between Papalaua and Lahainaluna.
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CHAIR WHITE: How many lineal feet of sidewalk is covered by an expense of 500,000?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: I need to get the detailed number from staff on that but we just, we only
know the limits.
CHAIR WHITE: You had mentioned in one of your measurements how many feet we've been able
to do and -MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: That's correct.
CHAIR WHITE: --don't remember what that number was but.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: We are looking at doing 1,000 lineal feet in FY '15.
CHAIR WHITE: So that suggests that it's $500 per lineal foot?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's cheap. For concrete? Design?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Design and construction.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Design and construction. Have you seen them put those things in?
They dig out and they do...
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: There's also.. .I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sorry.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: If I could also add, we also have, there might be some other permitting
requirements involved. I know in this area of Ohukai, we might need to do an SMA
Assessment but other than just construction costs, there might be some also, also some
permitting costs required.
CHAIR WHITE: I guess the frustration is with all the process that we have involved up front, what
we end up with in the end is very little bang for our buck. If for half a million dollars all we
can do a year is 1,000 feet, that doesn't strike me as being a solution. That strikes me as
being a problem.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Agreed.
CHAIR WHITE: Because if we, you know, we're short of sidewalks all over the place.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Everywhere.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
-94-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 3, 2014

CHAIR WHITE: And if we can't figure out a better way to do it, we're never going to catch up and
anyway. We can move on to the next project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, no, no. We have questions.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thanks. And so yeah, I heard some West Maui streets
mentioned. Wain&e, I believe, and so where, do you know exactly whereabouts on Wain&e,
the sidewalk improvement?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: I have a note here saying Waine'e between Papalaua and Lahainaluna
on the mauka side. But that's, yeah. I just have a note here that says that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Yeah, quite narrow.
CHAIR WHITE: So what's the estimated cost for that?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: I don't have that with me but we can get that for you.
CHAIR WHITE: That's not very long. Anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair? Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. I'll try to get your mind off the rather expensive
permitting processes. Mr. Goode, you had, and thank you very much for doing a section on
South Kihei Road in front of, essentially across the street from the boat ramp, but you had
said that that was going to go all the way to Kilohana. Is that still in process and is that
included in here or is that included in this year's funding?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Couch, I think that's in '14's funding.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: How are we doing on that?
MR. GOODE: I'd have to find out exactly where we are.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Actually, Mr. Goode, our discussion regarding the Paving Program last year was
one of those things that I think you helped shed some light on my issue with too much
upfront costs. When we were talking about the Paving Program last year, one of the reasons
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you felt we would save money on the Paving Program is that by doing it ourselves, we don't
have to go through the same level of planning and bidding and contracting and that just leads
me to believe that there.. .we gotta start looking for other ways of doing the work that we're
doing. And I don't know what the solution is but it seems like, seems like we're spending a
lot of money on process and not much on product. As I said, I don't know what the solution
is. Maybe Mr. Couch has a solution.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I have a potential suggestion but is there a reason why that they are
concrete? Is that just standard? Because you guys put one in near the infamous monkeypod
that is asphalt and people are liking it. They say hey, it's better than the dirt that's there. Is
there something, any reason why it can't be asphalt to make it a longer run? 'Cause I'm
assuming you're going to get cheaper materials and you can make it a longer run because it's
not as engineered as concrete is. I don't know. I'm assuming there's some reason because
they're, all over the country they're concrete and not asphalt.
MR. GOODE: I think there's a few reasons. One is the concrete lasts a lot longer and wears better.
You can also tie in the gutters easier. And our standard specifications that we require
everyone else to uphold is concrete. So in that case where the monkeypods were, we're still
looking for various solutions there and so we didn't want to just put down the concrete,
which is going to be more expensive on a one-time, so we weren't, so as a temp, long-term
temporary I guess was to put down the asphalt and make it work. So in general, yeah,
concrete is the preferred surface. It does wear better. I think it has, it's going to meet ADA
longer term. You know, there might be some uplifting caused by tree roots, et cetera.
Asphalt can buckle pretty quickly.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Any further questions? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And, Mr. Goode, I know along the boardwalks,
will the extension along Wahikuli Area Wayside Park and all that all concrete but along like
in front of the Kaanapali Beach and, oh, North Beach in particular are those plastic recycled
boards. So, and then of course in the historic area downtown Lahaina, we have the wooden
planks, which, well, we get issues with those too but. And then parts of Lahaina where there
are improvements under the Banyan Tree going from the Park, Malu Ulu 0 Lele into, back
into Lahaina it's sort of made with some type of gravely or coral crushed something or other
in the cement maybe? I'm not really sure what the mixture is there but it's not purely
concrete itself. It has some type of rubble, or, I don't know, gravel type product. So I mean
there's various, you know, composites of sidewalks I notice around but to your point, Chair, I
think that if there is like a big master planning. I mean we've veered to creating our own
asphalt roads, now maybe we can I guess with looking at the prices here perhaps look
towards, you know, looking at a bigger master picture of sidewalks where they're needed and
start a phasing, a master plan of it all or something. You know, perhaps it could be done or
has that been looked at, Mr. Goode, or thought of to look at things that way?
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MR. GOODE: Well, yeah. I think it comes back to having the ability to look at all the costs, right,
and understand what the future maintenance costs are going to be. So back to that financial
analyst, that would be a great project for that person, right? It's like okay, look at this,
please. Try to figure this out and let's look at the, you know, the long-term costs, the upfront
costs. Yeah, I mean I totally agree with the Chair and Mr. Couch and it sounds like all of
you are nodding your heads. I mean $500,000 for 1,000 lineal feet of sidewalk, you know,
I'm in the wrong business. And it's, so there must be more to it. And so yeah, I'd like to
find out more about it. I mean, does that mean we're doing incidental drainage work along
the way too? Because usually when you have a sidewalk you gotta have a curb, well now
you have a drainage problem. Are we putting in drainage as we go along? Well, that might
explain some of the costs. Are there, is there moving utility poles that are in the way? Well,
that might explain some of the cost. What else? What else is there to it because, you know,
1,000 lineal feet of sidewalk 5 feet wide is 5,000 feet, that's a $100 a square foot. I mean
you can build a cottage, almost build a cottage by yourself for $100 a square foot so what's
going on? There must be something more to it. But we need to understand, I think, what all
the costs are going into it and certainly there's permitting issues and there's some design.
Earlier Chair Baisa had talked about Old Haleakala Highway sidewalk. Well, we're doing
the portion from at least from the Superette up to the school. That's not, that's pretty easy.
But when you go makai, when you now have all this drainage in the way and we've got
embankments and we've got utility poles and it will be expensive. I mean the rough costs
our staff had we just said whew, blow the whistle. Stop. Just do the mauka portion for now.
We'll get to that later. So a lot of times when you're retrofitting, you're retrofitting. That
means your costs are going to be higher. So yeah, we definitely need to look at all the
options.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you for the plug for the financial analyst again.
Alright.
MR. GOODE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Another justification right?
MR. GOODE: Yeah. I mean again, for us to make good management decisions or for you to make
good policy decisions, we need that financial component.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. And, no, this sidewalk thing I'd better
say something or my constituents will be really upset with me because I think we heard them
last night. They want sidewalks. And we talked about it this morning and, you know,
Director Goode is very aware of the problem but it becomes really, really complicated and it
makes me think about, you know, Makawao Avenue wanted sidewalks and they wanted to
widen it and do all kinds of wonderful things but another issue that came up was the residents
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along the road had serious objections. They didn't want us to move anything or encroach on
their front yards or make them move fences. And so that's another thing is it maybe sounds
wonderful, yeah, we're going to put in a sidewalk but you run into all kinds of roadblocks
because of if we're retrofitting. And I think that the lesson here is when we build, we better
build correctly and realize that sooner or later with the houses come kids and people that
have to walk on the side and so that's something to think about when we look at
developments. I don't think we were looking that far ahead many, many years ago when we
had few people of us living on Maui.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, how many of us with lighter hair walked to school on sidewalks?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's correct.
CHAIR WHITE: I didn't.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well, I mean Paia, where I walked on that Baldwin Avenue, there
was a sidewalk. It's still there. And the old sidewalks in Makawao that had are still there.
Nothing's changed. I've changed a lot.
CHAIR WHITE: The concrete is going to outlast us all.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Absolutely and I think that's why we do concrete.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: It's worth it.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, further questions on sidewalks? If not, we'll move on to Wailea Alanui
Drive and Wailea iki Drive Pavement Rehabilitation.
MR. GOODE: Okay, this is a Federally funded project that's design is pretty much complete.
We're very close to being finished. It will be doing the rehabilitation work as shown here on
the map for all of Wailea 'Iki and then Wailea Alanui from Wailea 'Iki back to Okalani. And
so this would be our County match as well as some construction management funds.
CHAIR WHITE: So is this a project that's being done with the State?
MR. GOODE: Well, the Federal funds come through the State but these are all County roads.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. GOODE: It's our match.
CHAIR WHITE: So you mentioned the design is all done. I don't see any prior encumbrances.
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MR. GOODE: I think we used, we may have used some Countywide funds for that because
sometimes these, what we're finding is that some of these projects come up quicker than we
can anticipate, I guess. And so if we get notified that there's Federal funds available and
County, do you have any projects? We say yes. Then we said, then we go find the project.
And so this one was on our list. It was eligible for the Federal funds and so there we were
able to use some Countywide funds for design purposes to expedite getting to here today.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, questions? Okay, let's move on to the next project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You said this is the County match? The
County match, I'm looking down here is 600,000, right? Not the 2.2 million? The
2.2 million is the total price?
MR. GOODE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And the Federal dollars would be 1.6?
MR. GOODE: Right. Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: So, wouldn't the design be part of the match? Or is the match just on
construction?
MR. GOODE: No, the match is on construction. You can do match on design but it's a whole other
process. It takes, it can add years to a project. So we have traditionally always done the
design with County funds.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Mr. Couch, do you have any further questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, thanks.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Next project is Kokomo Road Pavement Reconstruction.
MR. GOODE: Well, as you, I'm sure you heard about this last night.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yes.
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MR. GOODE: And I had two calls on it by lunchtime. And of course with the rains they've had on
that side it's been really difficult. So it's here. We did get the Federal funding for this
project. It was not Federally eligible a year ago. Our staff convinced the State and the Feds
that it's the type of road that should be Federally funded. They got that okay. That allowed
us to move forward again quickly on doing the design right away and we're going for as long
a piece as we can in this go around. So we're looking from, I think it's Hanamalia Road up
to Kaupakalua-Makawao Avenue intersection. This will be a reconstruction project. There's
really very little if any base course there and this project is moving very quickly to meet an
immediate need. So it's almost $5 million in construction, about $1 million County match.
We've also outlined about 500,000 for construction management.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Questions, Members? Seeing none, we'll move on to Makawao Baseyard
Equipment Storage.
MR. GOODE: The existing Makawao Baseyard has an older. . . well, we built a new garage a
handful of years ago and the old garage is in pretty bad shape and we have a lot of equipment
there that's out in the elements and the Makawao crew likes to take really good care of their
equipment, which is to be applauded. In fact, I think all of our guys like to do that. So
they've identified the need to increase their ability to keep things under roof to prolong the
life of our equipment and so this is the, this portion is design. We're looking for $100,000
for design.
CHAIR WHITE: Alright, any questions, Members? Okay, moving to the next program, Molokai
Baseyard.
MR. GOODE: Okay, I've touched on this one I think in a previous meeting. We were looking at
funds, I guess lapsed funds or, in your Committee, Chair. And I had the opportunity to talk
about this a little bit but we have an existing project to move the Molokai Baseyard from its
current location, closer to town up to the industrial area on Palaau and it is, it's pretty, it's
sorely need. I mean, we are in a flood area. In fact, we had the tsunami warning the other
day. The first place we called was Molokai. Of course they knew about it already and they
were starting to make adjustments but we need to move out of there. So we had Phase I.
You guys previously funded Phase I. We actually started construction and then we hit some
snags. Meanwhile, Phase II was getting designed. Phase II would be all the garage-related
structures. And so now Phase II is going to be ready to go or it's actually in for building
permit. So we thought that due to some of the hiccups we were having in Phase I, so we
cancelled the contract. We want to go out for bid for both phases simultaneously. We think
we'll get a better unit cost. We'll only have to deal with the construction one time. We
won't have to deal with it two times. We'll actually be in the facility and then having all the
construction activity going on while we're trying to run the yard and so we thought we could
get the best bang for the buck. So there will be some lapsed, I don't know if it's bond
proceeds or what we did there, Mr. Bar, but we didn't expend very much money and the
money we expended was needed towards the project anyways, mostly site, some site work.
We also are looking for construction management funds here and I think this is really, really
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important. The funds, as a percentage of the project are very reasonable but this is a decently
complex vertical structure that, you know, our staff doesn't do on a regular basis. We do
roads. We do drainage. We do bridges. We don't do much vertical construction. We'd, of
course, do maintenance-type construction work here on this campus. So we felt we needed
the help to really make sure that this thing is built per the plans and specs and that also that
they look at our existing plan and specs before we go out to bid and look for ways to value
engineer that to get it better, to get a better cost. And part of that value engineering has to be
that you have to understand what's available on Molokai. Certain things cost a lot
more. . .well, most things cost more, right?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
MR. GOODE: Right, Ms. Crivello. And not only that but some things are more difficult to get so
we're looking at, I know we're going to get our bang for the buck here and otherwise we're
going to be spending a lot of time with our personnel back and forth on airplanes and not
being able to be there as much as a CM company that does this all the time. So I think we're
on the right track now. I feel very confident about this approach. Again, I think we can get a
better pricing. We'll have it managed by professionals that do this type of work all the time
and we won't be inconveniencing staff by having them move up there and basically moving
into a construction site. And that's it, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, one of the questions, we have expended and encumbered in prior years of
roughly 3.8, $3.9 million. Those funds appear to still be available, is that correct, Mr. Bar?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I think from my recollection, the contract for the Phase I hasn't been
disencumbered yet. Once that becomes disencumbered, then those monies will become
available as lapsed bond proceeds but as of the printing of this, it was still included in
encumbered so that's why it shows prior year expended and encumbered.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so then the total for this project would appear to be in the neighborhood of
11 million, close to $12 million?
MR. GOODE: No, it won't be that much. I think the amount we're going to disencumber. . . well,
put it this way, I think the amount we spent was maybe a few hundred thousand dollars. So
we'll be disencumbering, I don't know, three and a half million. Something like that. Well,
then there's design cost under a previous contract so.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, but my question is if you're disencumbering it, the funds are still available.
What is the... let me rephrase that. Is the project cost the seven and a half million dollars or
is the project cost the seven and a half million plus the 3.8?
MR. BAZ: Well, the construction phase and construction management is going to be the seven and
a half million dollars. The design was previously paid for, which they probably still have
some encumbrance left over from that for, you know, during the construction phase of the
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project but the construction contract that was in place for Phase I will be disencumbered.
Once that is disencumbered, then since it was a Bond-Funded project, those funds become
available for use for another project. I don't have the number in front of me right now but...
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Okay, so that the public understands, when you disencumber it, the funds
go back into the Bond Fund. So what you're saying is the cost going forward from here is
the seven and a half million?
MR. BAZ: Yes, that's correct.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. That was what I was after. I must not have been asking the question
the right way.
MR. BAZ: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So what, say all these funding gets appropriated and what have
you, what sort of timeframe are we looking at completion?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Baz is pointing out to me we've got December, no, end of October, 2015. 1
mean, I hope it's that but we've had, unfortunately had on this project our fits and starts on it.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So it's all, so it will be reopened for new bids, right? Not on the
first phase. You severed the contract?
MR. GOODE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, so it's opened up for bid when it's available?
MR. GOODE: Right, so when we go out to bid it will be for both phases simultaneously.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Does that mean your, when you say administration building,
does that include your DSA? Your two, I think you have your inspectors and Kalola, I don't
know what her position is.
MR. GOODE: Yeah. So those folks will remain at Mitchell Pauole.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I see, okay.
MR. GOODE: Yeah. And they've got other support there and a lot of times folks are coming in and
they may have questions for Water, questions for Finance.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: One stop.
MR. GOODE: And so they'll be housed together. But Highways Division -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, okay.
MR. GOODE: --in its entirety will be up there.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Other questions, Members? Mr. Baz, can you confirm whether the bond was
floated for these projects that are being disencumbered?
MR. BAZ: I can confirm it. My assumption would be yes. Any encumbered contracts up until
November 2012 were included in that bond issuance so. This contract was prior to that,
correct?
MR. GOODE: November 2012?
MR. BAZ: But we can verify that.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, just to note, Mr. Chair. If the funds did not, were not part of that bond issuance or
a prior bond issuance then there would not be any lapsed fund proceeds, we would just not
borrow that money.
CHAIR WHITE: Right. Okay.
MR. BAZ: That's a good point to make.
CHAIR WHITE: Now, the drawings look like this is a two-story building?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: No.
MR. GOODE: I thought it was a one-story building.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, it doesn't look like two stories.
MR. GOODE: Oh these, yeah, this shows some of the Phase II garage. So it has the big roll-up
doors.
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CHAIR WHITE: If you have just some of the conceptual drawings or something that could give us
a little better idea than a little three by four picture.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, we did complete an EA and I know the EA is online, the OEQC Library so
they would have all the conceptual drawings there.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, we'll take a look at that. Members, any other questions on this item? And I
think it would be helpful if you could also give us an idea of what kind of, are you parking
any equipment in this building or is this just for servicing and offices?
MR. GOODE: Oh, gosh. My recollection was that there's servicing certainly in the garage and that
there was also kind of like shed-type structures for the other, like when they're overnight
parking and for the equipment. That was my recollection.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And do you have any.. .well that's alright. We'll send you a letter on the
other. Any other questions, Members, on the Molokai Baseyard? We'll move on to the Paia
School Safe Routes to School Project.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: So the Safe Routes to School Project, it's a 100 percent match from the
State and what we intend to do here is to replace and widen the sidewalks along Baldwin
Avenue and then also construct a new sidewalk fronting the school with full curb and gutter.
We're also improving pedestrian access from the Paia Gym and Skill Village community to
the school in order to provide students with the ability to access the school through those
areas.
CHAIR WHITE: So the sidewalk would extend to the gym?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Up to the gym, yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, questions on this project? Now when you say the word match,
you make it sound like, is this, looks like it's all Federal funds. So we're not matching it to
any degree, right?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: That's correct.
CHAIR WHITE: So basically 100 percent.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: It's like a one, I'm sorry, it's like a reimbursement.
CHAIR WHITE: For 100 percent.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Right. 100 percent reimbursement for the construction.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
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MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: And then also I wanted to add to that, eventually when we do
reconstruction work on Baldwin Avenue, at that time, we'll also do some additional
improvements there. Put those rapid flashing beacons, pedestrian-activated signals. So
further down the road we'll also do some additional improvements.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, great. Thank you. Lono Avenue Pavement Rehabilitation, Phase 2.
MR. GOODE: So, Mr. Chair, this picks up on Lono, kind of where we left off by Maui High School
to the end near Makali'i Street. So again, resurfacing, striping-type improvements. This is
Federally funded as well, looks like about 875,000. So our share is about 175,000. And we
do the construction management in-house.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Questions, Members? On to the next project, 'lao Stream Bridge Repairs.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, so this is just below Kepaniwai Park and they have a steel bridge there on
concrete abutments and our inspections have noted that there's some, a fair amount of
corrosion in some of the beams supporting it so the structure needed to be replaced. So this
is for $300,000 to get this work done.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, any questions? Seeing none, Kahekili Highway Culvert at Kamaile
Street.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, this is a small project. We have some existing, we have had although not
recently, but we have had ponding concerns there and there's not much, if any, of a drainage
infrastructure along Kahekili in this area so this will help alleviate that ponding situation.
CHAIR WHITE: And are we doing the design or is that being outsourced?
MR. GOODE: I think that's just in-house design, yes.
CHAIR WHITE: So if it's in-house design, is that something we cover with bond money? This is
identified as being bonded and it just, it kind of jumps out at me that the cost of the
construction is 100,000 and the cost of the design is 100,000. And if we're doing it in house,
we're covering the costs already, aren't we?
MR. GOODE: Oh, I'm sorry, Chair. I misread this. I thought that it was construction for 100,000
this year. So no. It looks like we're looking to get some design work done. I'm not sure,
there may be, I think there maybe might be some land issues here but I think I'd have to, I
don't know enough about this one to tell you right here, right now what those are for.
CHAIR WHITE: You can get back to us on this and if the design is being done and how, it seems to
me that we would not need to put 100,000 in CIP.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 3, 2014

MR. GOODE: Yeah, I don't know.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Next Item is Wailuku Municipal Lot Resurfacing and Restriping.
MR. GOODE: Well this is, yeah, this is my favorite project. I like to walk through this area
sometimes lunchtime and well, I think we've all been in the parking lot. It's in really bad
shape. The makai side is worse than the mauka side but it's pretty bad in all locations. So
this is a project that I think is sorely needed. We've had, I have had complaints about neartwisted ankles in here so I think it's time we take care of this project.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, questions? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. There's a lot of 12-hour parking in that area
so are you going to do it like a row at a time or something like so we have.. .because there's
going to be a lot of cars displaced during the pavement and if so, if you're going to do
everything at once, how many days would that take?
MR. GOODE: Well, one thing we're looking at is possibly doing night work because there are not a
lot of residents in the immediate area. So if we, by doing it night work we can parcel out the
work into phases and do it so that the work is done and then temporarily stripe and then come
in the next evening. I think that would probably be the best way to minimize disruption for
its use.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And 350 is enough if you're going to do night work because
you have overtime and all that fun stuff?
MR. GOODE: Well, I think if we need to we can supplement it with other funds depending on what
the bids come in at. That's our estimate. I have good engineers. They tend to estimate
slightly higher than they think it's going to be so sometimes it gives us a little leeway.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Any other questions? Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, no.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I was just lifting my stuff.
CHAIR WHITE: On to the next item, which is the Wailuku Baseyard Emergency Generator
Replacement.
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MR. GOODE: Yeah, so we're looking for design funds this year. The baseyard does not have an
emergency generator. This is our central area for emergencies and in the event of a large
emergency we're going to be counting on these folks in a big way. So you can imagine, I
mean we couldn't even pump gas if we don't have power. And so this is probably something
we should have had a long time ago. But so for this year we're asking for design funds to get
the emergency generator system design and then implement it the following year.
CHAIR WHITE: So is this going to, is this going to provide electricity for just the baseyard or
beyond the scope of the baseyard?
MR. GOODE: You usually have to do it by the electrical system that it serves so we actually have a
couple of different electric meters down here. So it would generally just be for that, those
facilities.
CHAIR WHITE: It seems like a very sizable generator to make sure we've got emergency needs
covered, like pumping gas and a few others. Maybe you can elaborate a little bit on exactly
what other items will be kept running. I can see you keeping computer systems running and
emergency lighting and any pumping facilities but what else have you got going on down
there?
MR. GOODE: Well, the biggest use of electricity is the garage. And so for the lifts inside of the
garage, a lot of the powered equipment that the garage uses can use a fair amount of
electricity. And if the equipment's getting used and abused out on the road we need to repair
it right away. So yeah, I don't know the specifics of what sized, potentially what sized
generator. I mean the design might be able to, you know, sort that through. Right now it's
very preliminary. So the design perhaps could identify a way to get it done with smaller
generators. But at this point we haven't even gone through the design so I think it's probably
just a best guess at this point for the cost.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Any other questions, Members? Everyone's very quiet this afternoon.
Next project, Market Street Off-Street Parking Lot.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: I'm not sure if your picture has the Municipal Parking Lot in the center,
but this parking lot is actually right next to the <lao Theater between the <lao Theater and the
Wailuku Police Substation. This is a project that the Planning Department had been working
on with the MRA and we submitted this on their behalf. The project scope involves the
paving of a parking lot in this area. A gravel lot.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so paving, it's the parking area that goes down between the theater and the
police substation?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: That's correct.
CHAIR WHITE: And it goes --107-
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MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Currently it's...
CHAIR WHITE: --around the back of the theater, right?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Right. A portion of it is a gravel lot right now so the intent is to
provide additional parking.
CHAIR WHITE: And will that be metered after it's paved or remain open?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: We don't have any details as to whether or not it would be metered at
this time.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: The Planning Department had proposed also creating a park facility. . .1 shouldn't say
park facility, but it's kind of a town square in this as well for an additional around $300,000.
There's some discussion still going on with that so there's just this year...
CHAIR WHITE: In this, in the same area?
MR. BAZ: Yeah. I think it's, from my understanding it's by, up on the theater.. .because there's
different levels. If you look at where the top right hand corner of this picture, there's the
Police substation.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. BAZ: And that level there, and then the parking lot would be the back side of it.
CHAIR WHITE: Alright, but the town square that you're talking about, is that going to be where
Public Works is planning to pave or in a separate lot?
MR. BAZ: I believe it's going to be a separate, well, it'll be on the same lot but separate section.
They're not going to pave it and then create a park I would assume.
CHAIR WHITE: I know but there's not a whole lot of lot there.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, I haven't seen drawings, I've just heard verbally.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, before we approve this one we're going to need to know whether Planning
has different designs on it.
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MR. BAZ: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, first of all, let's make a correction. That's not a police
substation any more. :That is utilized by your County.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, so that's not a substation so forget that, okay? Let's get
corrected the way it should be. Secondly, the intent was to pave that entire area and make it
parking. The park that they've been talking about, as far as I've been told and I've worked
with, on the MRA, we nixed that a long time ago and we're not considering that anymore.
Or at least I'm not considering that anymore.
MR. BAZ: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The Administration is they haven't come back to us and said
anything about it, so.
MR. BAZ: No, the.. .excuse me, Mr. Chair and Mr. Victorino. They actually just had a meeting
with me last week where they were, had been continually advocating for this park thing so
that's still in MRAs and that was coming from the MRA not from the Administration.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, they haven't come to us, so they haven't come to me
and say anything about it so unless they do I cannot support it.
MR. BAZ: Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I won't support it.
MR. BAZ: And that's why, Mr. Chair, we just put in the paving so that we could, you know, deal
with some liability issues of having the gravel parking lot there and tripping hazards and deal
with the park issue later.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, moving on to the next Item, Hansen Road Improvements.
MR. GOODE: Okay, well this was our number one project. I think Kokomo's quickly trying to
take number one. But this is, again, Federally funded. We are pretty much done with the
design. I think everything's supposed to be in by May. We have two separate projects here.
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We have the bridge, a small bridge, Kalialinui Gulch flows through there and Hansen Road.
But this will be a complete rehab. I mean, the road clearly takes big truck traffic to the
landfill. We're getting bike lanes in on this one because it's part of the Bikeways Master
Plan. We're also correcting some, there's some vertical curves, like when you're just past
the landfill heading towards Paia there's some curves there that aren't very safe so those are
all getting corrected. It's really going to be an outstanding project to a road that really needs
it so I look forward to moving forward with this project.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and is this also the realignment of that subsection
between the mill and Pulehu Road? Because I was under the impression that we're going to
take some of those big turns and actually realign and you guys were talking with HC&S to
exchange some land to make the road more compatible to traffic.
MR. GOODE: My understanding is we're staying pretty much in the existing right-of-way. So
there might be some straightening here and there. The land exchange, we actually have, I
think it's in Mr. Hokama's Committee and we're still working out some issues with that but
that had to do with the realignment we already finished, the one right at the mill.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members, we have, we've gone through about 28 pages and we've got 14
left go.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Let's finish it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, just go for it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Let's finish this.
CHAIR WHITE: So we're going to, my preference is just to stay until six o'clockish -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Whatever let's finish.
CHAIR WHITE: --and get it done. If you need a quick break I'm happy to take a five-minute
recess and then get back to work.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Recess. . . .(gavel)...
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RECESS:
RECONVENE:

4:53 p.m.
5:06 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . .(gavel)... Budget and Finance Committee will reconvene to continue with the
review of Public Works CIP Programs and, Members, we finished on the Hansen Road
Improvements Project and we're moving ahead with Kahakuloa Stream Bridge. Director.
MR. GOODE: Okay, well here's one of the bridges that are structurally deficient. I think that's the
word we were looking for previously.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MR. GOODE: There it is. I couldn't remember it either. Okay. So this bridge was actually a
temporary bridge that was installed in the late '80s and it's served its purpose and so this year
we're looking for design funds and then construction actually for a few years, not for a few
more years. There's going to be a number of issues here. There's right-of-way issues where
it is related to property lines. We've got a stream underneath it so the amount of permitting's
going to be significant. And that's it.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, questions for the Director? Seeing none, we'll move on to the next
Item, Waiko Road Improvements.
MR. GOODE: This is the... oh, this is Waiko Road. I was thinking of Waiale Road. Okay, yeah.
We want to reconstruct and resurface Waiko Road from Waiale Road down to Kuihelani. So
this year we have some funds in here for looks like there some land acquisition issues we
need to get through and design. We've looked for funding for construction, which would be
Federally funded in 2017.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Is this in conjunction with the development of the park and the County
baseyard?
MR. GOODE: Yeah. Actually and also the Waiale Road extension. We started doing the work on
the Waiale Road extension from Waiko Road up to Honoapiilani Highway. That, we
started, the EA actually included this work as well so it's just part of the, I guess sub-regional
improvements that are needed in the area but it will certainly help in the development of the
park and baseyard facilities.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Members, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
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CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And this is, will this also encumber the expansion of that
Waiko business area, industrial area where they're going to expand up by where Nobriga's
using now as his cattle lot, his field. They're going to put industrial there and then also
commercial down at the corner of Kuihelani and Waiko Road. This will all be a part of that?
MR. GOODE: Right. So they would be responsible for along their section.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. GOODE: Or they would contribute to our project. So like where the existing baseyard is,
you'll see there's no improvements in there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. GOODE: But they contributed funds to what they would have done that the County's already
received those funds.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And that would be dedicated towards these
improvements for -MR. GOODE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --Waiko Road?
MR. GOODE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The other question, and, you know, I hope I not, you know,
talking out of line, you know, too much but is there going to be a hardening or a surface on
the what I call the Waihee ... not the Waihee, the Waikapu side? You know, right now
there's that culvert that runs down there. You know, when it rains the water just flows
through that area. And years ago you guys did a good job because remember that road was
busted up going down like about two, three feet deep with that erosion. However, asphalt,
you know, when you get enough rain asphalt starts to give. Is there going to be hardening,
like cement or some other impervious surface that when these big rains come you won't be
losing all of that area because that's one of concerns that even some of the people who are
there now have. That next big, you know, one of those really massive rains would eat up all
of that asphalt that is on the Waikapu side.
MR. GOODE: I would think that would be included.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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MR. GOODE: It's something we can certainly talk to staff about as we develop the project.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If you could give us a response later, that'd be fine. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Further questions on the Waiko Road? Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair. Not a question and this is kind of manini but under the
project description Waiale typo, instead of Waile, you know, whatever. Just, you know, no
big deal but we know what we mean but just to be accurate. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. On to the Waiale Road Extension Project.
MR. GOODE: Okay, yeah. So here's the Waiale Road Extension portion of this. So this would
again extend from Waiko Road to Honoapi'ilani Highway. We're looking for design funds
this year. The goal is to get towards construction in 2017 and to time it in such a way that it
works with the development of the baseyardlpark facilities the County recently purchased.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, questions for the Department, Members? Is there any request of the
adjacent landowners to participate in this or the nearby landowners?
MR. GOODE: There's been discussion with Mike Atherton. They've been looking at possibly
doing some improvements on their side so I think as we get farther into the design we can
work with them on that. They would have to pay for the design and construction on their
side of if.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, any other questions, Members? Seeing none, moving to the Waiehu Stream
Bridge Repair.
MR. GOODE: Well, a picture tells a thousand words. You know, this is over the Waiehu Stream,
the lower section there and we had design funds in '14. I think that's a typo where it says
zero. Staff noted here it was $75,000 previously that we have so we're in design right now
and looking to do construction this coming fiscal year.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, questions, Members. Seeing none, move on to the Lahaina Watershed
Flood Control Project.
MR. GOODE: Okay, this is the project that we had mentioned earlier. Ms. Cochran was pointing
out whether or not we had the Federal funds or not. We currently do not but we're not going
to give up on trying to get them. So this would be the next phase, which would get us
through Kauaula Stream. So at Kauaula Stream, this is where the project was originally
going to terminate. It was going to terminate here at Kauaula and then go through Puamana
and then the Puamana folks didn't want all that water coming through their project
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potentially and so what we have going on here is a place where the water, the drainage water
would come from Lahaina side essentially kind of mix with Kauaula water coming down the
stream. Some of still goes through Puamana then others continues on to the drainage project
that we've already built. So this is a fairly difficult construction project but nevertheless it's
been designed. It's essentially ready to go. We just need the Federal match. So this year we
have.. .what do we have in here, Sandy? Five million Federal? Oh, I'm assuming.. .yeah,
seven million Federal, a million on our side.
CHAIR WHITE: So the project is actually not located in the picture provided, correct? Isn't that
showing the portion that's already constructed and the future work would be for a lack of a
better word upstream of this?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, this work would take place right in, basically in the stream on either side of it,
you know.
CHAIR WHITE: But isn't this picture showing the outfall? The basin where it goes into the water?
MR. GOODE: I don't know if I have the same picture that you do. I have a graphic map, it says
Phase III B on it. That is pointing to the stream I believe.
CHAIR WHITE: But isn't that the highway? Oh, no. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Page 831.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, no. I was misreading it. Black and white's not as good as color. Okay,
thank you. Any questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Actually, Chair, yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm kind of confused with all these colors and lines and stuff,
too. Phase III B, right, Director? We have like a yellow rectangle with an arc and an arrow.
MR. GOODE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Pointing at, and then where that arrow is pointing to is
this area you were describing?
MR. GOODE: Right. That's at Kauaula Stream just above the highway.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And that green zigzag is currently what's in place, right?
MR. GOODE: Well, that's, I guess that is the --114-
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The flood?
MR. GOODE: --for the flood control project. I forgot it had that little zigzag that you mentioned.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: So what's there now is, well with it being under construction right now, we're
crossing under Hokiokio Road and going up. So it would be just, there's those three red lines
going up to the one.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: It kind of goes to the word Kauaula Land Company, LLC. That's where we're going
to right now.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. GOODE: But we have funding. I can't remember if it's two projects. I think Hokiokio
crossing might be one or.. .we've been juggling these projects as Federal funds become
available. There was like $2.8 million that became available. We got a phone call saying
can you get these funds like in the next, right away. So we actually cancelled a contract.
Folded that contract into more work and were able to encumber those funds. So I'm pretty
sure it goes right up to where I just described, that middle red line.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh. Okay. And everything's been worked out with
surrounding neighbors and ownership and what have you?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, we have land control up to where we're working but going farther mauka, like
through Waine'e, we don't have all the land control there yet.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay, thanks, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, further questions, Members? Okay, moving on to Lower Honoapi'ilani
Road Retaining Wall and Drainage Improvements Fronting Kahana Sunset.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: And this is for new construction of a new wall, retaining wall, and as
the title mentioned drainage improvements. This is one where we had an existing Lower
Honoapi'ilani Road Phase IV Project and that was a reconstruction project that included
some drainage improvements. But what we did was we separated that project out or took out
that drainage project and made it its own project here so that it wouldn't have to wait until
that reconstruction project moved forward. So what we want to do is be able to address those
drainage issues in this year's budget.
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CHAIR WHITE: Questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That fund that we were talking about earlier that's
underutilized, would that be able to use for this project? Because it seems to be the exact
amount too. Three hundred thousand you said was in that fund. What was the name of that
one? Sony.
CHAIR WHITE: No. That was for construction contract review or permit review.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yeah, that would be a plan review. This would be a CIP type of project
so I don't think the funding, the funds would be...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, I'm getting them mixed up. Sorry. Long day. But yeah, I
know the area, it looks quite precarious as you can see the edge right there. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Any other questions, Members? Seeing none, moving on to the Napili 4/5 Culvert
at Lower Honoapiilani Road.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: This is another culvert repair. There's some erosion happening at this
section. This is another project along Lower Honoapi'ilani Road so it's also slated for
300,000 in design.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Questions, Members? Seeing none, next project is the Lahaina Baseyard
Improvements.
MR. GOODE: So Lahaina Baseyard is running out of space and I don't know if anyone has been in
there recently but it's, everything's shoehorned in there pretty tightly. We have an existing
Executive Order from the State but we need more space, especially for materials. And
ultimately if we can get more storage room for trucks and various equipment, et cetera. And
so we're just at that point where we need more space in order to be more effective and
efficient and especially for materials, you know, where we have to try to squirrel things away
here and there. It's very, it's really not efficient at all. So I think this year we're looking at
land acquisition funds and design funds.
CHAIR WHITE: On these baseyard projects, is it possible to get a list of the kinds of equipment and
materials that you're wanting to store in the buildings.
MR. GOODE: Uh-huh. Sure. We could do that.
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CHAIR WHITE: The only reason I bring that up is that we're spending a significant amount of
money on protection of equipment and I'd just like to get a sense of what the value of the
equipment is that we're storing in there and the anticipated life extension by having the
buildings to park them in. I have a 22-year old tractor that's been sitting out in the rain and
still works just fine. In fact, a lot of equipment is built that way. And so I'd just like to get a
sense of satisfaction that we're protecting something that really needs the protection.
MR. GOODE: Okay. Yeah, we can provide that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And, Director, you mentioned land acquisition?
MR. GOODE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Where, so whereabouts? Right behind, or I guess the stream is
next to it.
MR. GOODE: Right. We have the stream and the basin behind us and so there's some room
between us and the basin but at this point I haven't seen any proposed plans at all so I think
that would be part of the initial work. Some of the initial design work would be identify
some of those areas and then immediately go to our land section to look at, okay, is it
feasible? Who's the landowner? You know, various hoops we need to jump through to get
to that point. Get some type, generally we like to get some type of agreement saying yeah,
okay, we're willing to sell the land and then we can continue the design while we complete
the land acquisition process.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Alright. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further questions? Seeing none, moving on to Front Street Breakwall Repair
fronting Lahaina Center.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: This is the area next to that Bubba Gump's Restaurant fronting the new
outlet malls in FY '15, we're requesting about 150,000 for design and planning. And this
also would include any kind of regulatory permitting that would be required to do.
CHAIR WHITE: Questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And yeah, I didn't realize you folks were looking at
this but it. . .so what type, are you just going to structurally beef it up or what kind of
improvements are you looking to do to this?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: We don't know the, I don't know the details of it but I guess there's
some little repairs that we need to do along the breakwall and we just want to be sure that we
get to these repairs before any other major repairs need to be done.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further questions? Seeing none, on to Front Street Deck and Rail Repair
Near Lahainaluna Road.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: This is another project that was identified by our staff as needing some
attention along Front Street. So again, we're looking at monies for the design and planning.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, you can see the need for the repairs there. Members, any questions on this
project?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so this would be toward, you said Lahainaluna Road, so
where the Bubba Gump's and probably where the stairwell goes down to the beach there?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so the, obviously the entire wall has been sussed out and
figuring just this section or is this just a photo showing the biggest part or is it a lot, other
areas of this wall that are going to be worked on?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: We can get more details on that. I think the photo just shows...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, just that section? 'Cause it goes, yeah, another, kind of a
block down. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further questions, Members? That brings us to the end of the CIP. Thank
you. That brings us to the end of our CIP review and the end of the review for Public Works.
I want to thank the Director and Deputy Director for being patient with us and, Members,
before we leave the Chambers, just a reminder that tomorrow's a Council meeting so we
need to clear off our desks and either take your books back to your offices or place them in
the drawers. And just a reminder for everybody else, we will, everyone else watching, on
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Monday we will be taking up the Mayor's Office and the Office of Management, and then on
Monday evening we will have our public hearing in Lahaina at 6:00 pm. So we'll look
forward to joining Ms. Cochran in her district.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yep.
CHAIR WHITE: And if there are no other questions or comments for Public Works.. .are there?
Seeing none, we are adjourned. Thank you, Members. . . .(gavel)...

ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
ADJOURN:

5:27 p.m.

APPROVED:

MIKE WHITE, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
bf:min: 140403:krr

Transcribed by: Kekai R. Robinson
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